1	BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COM	MISSION OF UTAH
2	-000-	
3	Application of Dominion Energy) DOCKET NO. 22-057-13
	Utah for an Adjustment to the Low)
4	Income/Energy Assistance Rate)
)
5	Application of Dominion Energy) DOCKET NO. 22-057-14
_	Utah to Amortize the Energy	
6	Efficiency Deferred Account)
7	Balance	
,	Application of Dominion Energy) DOCKET NO 22-057-15
8	Utah to Amortize the Conservation	
	Enabling Tariff Balancing Account	,
9)
	Pass-Through Application of) DOCKET NO. 22-057-16
10	Dominion Energy Utah for an)
	Adjustment in Rates and Charges)
11	for Natural Gas Service in Utah)
12	Application of Dominion Energy) DOCKET NO. 22-057-17
13	Utah for an Adjustment to the	
13	Daily Transportation Imbalance Charge	
14	Citatge)
15		- ′
16	Public Hearing	
17	Taken on Monday, October	24, 2022
18	At 12:58 p.m. M	ĪT
19		
20	At Heber M. Wells Bu	_
21	160 East 300 Sou	
22	4th Floor, Room 4	
23 24	Salt Lake City, Utah	84111
25	Reported by: Brooke Simms, RPR, C	ICR CSR
20	Reported by. Brooke Brining, RFR, C	Jen, Con
		Page 1

1	APPEARANCES
2	Presiding Officer:
3	John Delaney
4	
_	For Dominion Energy Utah:
5	Tor bominion inergy ocum
J	JENNIFFER NELSON CLARK, ESQ.
6	DOMINION ENERGY UTAH
O	333 South State Street
7	P.O. Box 45433
,	Salt Lake City, Utah 84145-0433
8	jenniffer.clark@dominionenergy.com
9	jemmilier.erark@domimionemergy.eom
,	For the Division of Public Utilities:
10	TOT CHE DIVISION OF TUBLE OCTIVE CS.
10	PATRICIA E. SCHMID, ESQ.
11	UTAH ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE
	160 East 300 South, 5th Floor
12	Salt Lake City, Utah 84114
12	(801) 366-0353
13	pschmid@agutah.gov
14	pschmid@agdcan.gov
т т	For the Office of Consumer Services:
15	FOI THE OFFICE OF CONSUMER BETVICES.
1 3	ROBERT J. MOORE, ESQ.
16	UTAH ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE
10	160 East 300 South, 5th Floor
17	Salt Lake City, Utah 84114
1 /	(801) 366-0353
18	rmoore@agutah.gov
19	I moore agacan. gov
20	
20	* * *
21	
22	
23	
2 4	
25	
<u> </u>	
	Page 2

1		
1	I N D E X	
2		PAGE
3	DOCKET NO. 22-057-13	17101
5	JORDAN STEPHENSON	
4	Direct Examination By Ms. Clark	6
5	-	0
5	RUSSELL CAZIER	1.0
_	Direct Examination By Ms. Schmid	10
6		
	DOCKET NO. 22-057-14	
7	JORDAN STEPHENSON	
	Direct Examination By Ms. Clark	13
8		
	SHAUNA BENVEGNU-SPRINGER	
9	Direct Examination By Ms. Schmid	16
10	DOCKET NO. 22-057-15	
	JORDAN STEPHENSON	
11	Direct Examination By Ms. Clark	21
12	RUSSELL CAZIER	
	Direct Examination By Ms. Schmid	23
13	-	
	DOCKET NO. 22-057-16	
14	JESSICA IPSON	
	Direct Examination By Ms. Clark	26
15		
	RUSSELL CAZIER	
16	Direct Examination By Ms. Schmid	30
17	DOCKET NO. 22-057-17	30
Ι,	JESSE JACKSON	
18		36
ТО	Direct Examination By Ms. Clark	
1.0	Cross-Examination By Ms. Schmid	38
19		
	RYAN DAIGLE	
20	Direct Examination By Ms. Schmid	39
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
		Page 3

1	PROCEEDINGS
2	-000-
3	PRESIDING OFFICER: Good afternoon, everyone.
4	Today's October 24th, 2022. It's approximately
5	1:00 o'clock p.m., and this is the date and the time
6	that's scheduled for the consolidated hearing in five
7	dockets, and let me read these into the record.
8	First, Docket 22-057-13, the Application of
9	Dominion Energy for an Adjustment to the Low Income
10	Assistance/Energy Assistance Rate. Second, Docket
11	22-057-14, the Application of Dominion Energy Utah to
12	Amortize the Energy Efficiency Deferred Account
13	Balance. Third, Docket 22-057-15, the Application of
14	Dominion Energy Utah to Amortize the Conservation
15	Enabling Tariff Balancing Account.
16	Fourth, Docket 22-057-16, Pass-Through
17	Application of Dominion Energy Utah for an Adjustment
18	in Rates and Charges for Natural Gas Service in Utah.
19	And finally, fifth, Docket 22-057-17, the Application
20	of Dominion Energy Utah for an Adjustment to the Daily
21	Transportation Imbalance Charge.
22	My name is John Delaney, and I'm the
23	commission's designated presiding officer for this
24	hearing. Why don't we start with appearances.
25	MS. CLARK: I'm Jenniffer Clark. I'm counsel
	Page 4

for Dominion Energy, and I brought with me three
witnesses from the Company: Jordan Stephenson, Jessica
Ipson, and Jesse Jackson.
PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Let's go with
the Office since we're going in order.
MR. MOORE: Robert Moore of the AG's Office,
representing the Office of Consumer Services. The
office didn't participate extensively in these dockets
and will not have a witness.
PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you. For the
Division?
MS. SCHMID: Thank you. Patricia E. Schmid
with the Utah Attorney General's Office representing
the Division of Public Utilities. The Division has
three witnesses today. First, we have Rus Cazier,
Shauna Benvegnu-Springer, and Ryan Daigle. Mr. Cazier
will be handling three of the dockets.
PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you.
MS. SCHMID: Thank you.
PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Anything
preliminarily that we should talk about, or should we
just get going?
Okay. Please, Ms. Clark, why don't you call
your first witness. Oh, I'm sorry. Let's go in order
just to be clear, 13 through 17.

1	MS. CLARK: Perfect. Thank you.
2	PRESIDING OFFICER: Call your first witness,
3	please.
4	MS. CLARK: The Company calls Jordan
5	Stephenson.
6	PRESIDING OFFICER: Good afternoon,
7	Mr. Stephenson.
8	MR. STEPHENSON: Good afternoon.
9	PRESIDING OFFICER: Do you swear to tell the
10	truth?
11	MR. STEPHENSON: Yes.
12	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you.
13	MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you.
14	
15	JORDAN STEPHENSON
16	having been sworn, testifies as follows:
17	
18	DIRECT EXAMINATION
19	BY MS. CLARK:
20	Q. Mr. Stephenson, please state your full name
21	and business address for the record, please.
22	A. Jordan Stephenson, 333 South State, Salt Lake
23	City, Utah.
24	Q. And what position do you hold with the
25	Company?
	Page 6
	1490

1	A. Manager of regulation.
2	Q. Mr. Stephenson, the Company filed an
3	application in this docket along with the accompanying
4	Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3. Did you prepare those or
5	cause them to be prepared?
6	A. Yes.
7	Q. And do you adopt the contents of those
8	documents as your testimony today?
9	A. Yes.
10	MS. CLARK: The Company moves for the
11	admission of the application and accompanying Exhibits
12	1.1 through 1.3.
13	PRESIDING OFFICER: Any objections to the
14	motion?
15	Okay. Motion granted or admitted.
16	MS. CLARK: Thank you.
17	Q. (BY MS. CLARK) Mr. Stephenson, can you please
18	summarize the relief the Company seeks with this
19	application?
20	A. Yes, I can. In this docket, the Company
21	requests an adjustment to the low income assistance
22	rate. This will result in an annual increase of \$.02
23	for a typical customer and allow the program to
24	maintain the funding level of \$1.5 million per year.
25	The Company is also proposing to maintain the current
	Page 7

1	annual energy assistance credit at \$107 per qualifying
2	customer per year, which would be credited to an
3	estimated 15,700 participants during the upcoming
4	heating season.
5	In addition, the Company proposes a
6	contribution of \$751,000 \$751,147 to the Utah
7	Department of Workforce Services Housing and Community
8	Development Weatherization Assistance Program over the
9	next 12 months. The proposed rates are just and
10	reasonable and in the public interest. Therefore, the
11	Company requests that the rates be approved going into
12	effect on November 1st, 2022.
13	This concludes my summary.
14	Q. Mr. Stephenson, I believe I misspoke when I
15	identified the number of exhibits. Did you cause also
16	to be prepared DEU Exhibits 1.4 and 1.5?
17	A. Yes, I did.
18	Q. And do you adopt those also as your testimony
19	today?
20	A. Yes.
21	MS. CLARK: The Company would move for the
22	admission of those additional exhibits.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: Any objection to that
24	motion?
25	Okay. Motion is granted. They're admitted.
	Page 8

1	MS. CLARK: Thank you. Mr. Stephenson is
2	available for cross-examination and hearing officer's
3	questions.
4	PRESIDING OFFICER: The Office?
5	MR. MOORE: The Office has no questions.
6	PRESIDING OFFICER: Sure. Ms. Schmid?
7	MS. SCHMID: The Division has no questions.
8	PRESIDING OFFICER: Great. I have no
9	questions either.
10	MS. CLARK: The Company has nothing further on
11	this docket.
12	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. And, Mr. Moore, no
13	witnesses; correct?
14	MR. MOORE: We have no witness. I'm
15	authorized to state that the OSAS, consistent with his
16	comments filed in this document, recommends that the
17	PSE approve the proposal to transfer the surplus energy
18	assistance program's funds to the low income weathering
19	program's funds for the reasons contained in the
20	application. Thank you.
21	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr. Moore.
22	Ms. Schmid, do you have any witnesses on this docket?
23	MS. SCHMID: We do. The Division would like
24	to call Russel Cazier. May he please be sworn?
25	PRESIDING OFFICER: Mr. Cazier, good

1	afternoon.
2	MR. CAZIER: Good afternoon.
3	PRESIDING OFFICER: Do you swear to tell the
4	truth?
5	THE WITNESS: I do.
6	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you.
7	
8	RUSSELL CAZIER
9	having been sworn, testifies as follows:
10	
11	DIRECT EXAMINATION
12	BY MS. SCHMID:
13	Q. Good afternoon. Could you please state and
14	spell your name for the record.
15	A. Yes. My name is Russell Cazier,
16	R-u-s-s-e-l-l, last name C-a-z-i-e-r.
17	Q. By whom are you employed?
18	A. The Division of Public Utilities.
19	Q. What is your title?
20	A. Utility analysis.
21	Q. And your business address?
22	A. It's 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City.
23	Q. In conjunction with your employment by the
24	Division, have you participated in this docket, which
25	ends in 13, the Adjustment to the Low Income/Energy
	Do 10
	Page 10

1	Assistance Rates?
2	A. I have.
3	Q. Did you prepare or cause to be prepared and
4	filed a memorandum dated October 19th, 2022, in both
5	redacted and confidential form?
б	A. Yes.
7	Q. This docket or this action request response
8	covers three dockets: 13, 15, and 16; is that correct?
9	A. Correct.
10	Q. Do you adopt this action request response
11	insofar as it pertains to the docket ending in 13 as
12	part of your testimony here today?
13	A. I do.
14	Q. Do you have a summary to present today with
15	respect to the 13th docket?
16	A. Yes.
17	Q. Please proceed.
18	A. The Energy Assistance Program provides an
19	annual credit for enrolled low income customers. In
20	Docket 22-057-13, Dominion requests a rate change to
21	collect the \$77,104 under collection in addition to the
22	base approved amount of 1.5 million. The Company
23	estimates that 15,700 qualified customers will apply
24	for the credit and the request and requests to
25	maintain the current credit of \$107 per customer.
	Page 11

1	If approved independently, the effect of this
2	change for the typical GS residential customer in Utah
3	using 70 dekatherms per year will be an increase in
4	their total annual bill of \$.02. The proposed change
5	is in the public's interest and represents just and
6	reasonable rates for Utah customers.
7	The Division recommends the Commission approve
8	the requested rate change in this docket for the energy
9	assistance as a final rate with an effective date of
10	November 1st, 2022, as it is not subject to a Division
11	audit.
12	This concludes my summary.
13	Q. Thank you. Could you please tell me how to
14	pronounce your last name yet again.
15	A. It's Cazier.
16	Q. Cazier.
17	A. Yes.
18	MS. SCHMID: Mr. Cazier is now available for
19	cross-examination questions and questions from the
20	hearing officer.
21	PRESIDING OFFICER: Mr. Moore?
22	MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Ms. Clark?
24	MS. CLARK: I have no questions. Thanks.
25	PRESIDING OFFICER: And I have no questions
	Page 12

1	either. Thank you very much.
2	MR. CAZIER: Thank you.
3	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. I think we can move
4	on to the next docket, which is docket ending in 14.
5	Ms. Clark, would you like to call your first witness?
6	MS. CLARK: I would. The Company once again
7	calls Mr. Stephenson.
8	
9	JORDAN STEPHENSON
10	having been sworn, testifies further as follows:
11	
12	DIRECT EXAMINATION
13	BY MS. CLARK:
14	Q. Mr. Stephenson, I believe you are still under
15	oath. I will remind you of that. Can you please state
16	your name and business address once more for the
17	record.
18	A. Yes. It's Jordan Stephenson. 333 South
19	State, Salt Lake City, Utah.
20	Q. Mr. Stephenson, in the 14 docket that we are
21	discussing at the moment, the Company filed an
22	application along with accompanying Exhibits 1.1
23	through 1.6. Did you prepare these documents or cause
24	them to be prepared?
25	A. Yes.
	Page 13

1	Q. And do you adopt their contents as your
2	testimony today?
3	A. Yes.
4	Q. Mr. Stephenson, could you please summarize the
5	relief the Company seeks in this docket?
6	A. Yes, I can. In this docket the Company seeks
7	approval to adjust the energy efficiency rate in order
8	to amortize the current energy efficiency account
9	balance. As of August 31st, 2022, the deferred account
LO	balance amounted to a credit of \$1,356,478. With this
L1	adjustment to the rate, the Company will collect the
L2	necessary revenue while minimizing interest expense for
L3	customers and the Company.
L4	If approved, this would result in a decrease
L5	of \$5.23 per year or .69 percent paid by a typical
L6	customer using 70 dekatherms per year. The proposed
L7	rates are just, reasonable, and in the public interest,
L8	and the Company requests that the rates be approved on
L9	an interim basis with rates going into effect on
20	November 1st, 2022.
21	And this concludes my summary.
22	Q. Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.
23	MS. CLARK: The Company would move for the
24	admission of the application and accompanying Exhibits
25	1.1 through 1.6.

1	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Any
2	objections? Mr. Moore? No?
3	MR. MOORE: No objections.
4	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid?
5	MS. SCHMID: No objections.
6	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Motion granted.
7	They're admitted.
8	MS. CLARK: Thank you. Mr. Stephenson is now
9	available for cross-examination and the hearing
10	officer's questions.
11	PRESIDING OFFICER: Any cross-examination?
12	MR. MOORE: No cross. Thank you.
13	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid?
14	MS. SCHMID: Nothing for the Division.
15	PRESIDING OFFICER: Nothing from me either.
16	Thank you.
17	MS. CLARK: The Company has nothing further on
18	this docket.
19	PRESIDING OFFICER: Wonderful. Thank you very
20	much.
21	Ms. Schmid, do you have a witness for this
22	Docket 14?
23	MS. SCHMID: Yes. The Division's witness is
24	Ms. Shauna Benvegnu-Springer.
25	
	Page 15

1		SHAUNA BENVEGNU-SPRINGER
2		testifies as follows:
3		
4		DIRECT EXAMINATION
5	BY MS. SO	CHMID:
6	Q.	Good afternoon.
7	A.	Good afternoon.
8	Q.	Could you please state and spell your name for
9	the reco	rd.
10	A.	Yes. Shauna Benvegnu-Springer, S-h-a-u-n-a,
11	Benvegnu	, B-e-n-v as in "Victor"-e-g-n-u-, dash
12	Springer	, -S-p-r-i-n-g-e-r.
13	Q.	By whom are you employed?
14	A.	I'm employed by the Utah Department Utah
15	Division	of Public Utilities.
16	Q.	Your title?
17	A.	My title is utility technical technical
18	consultar	nt.
19	Q.	And your business address, please.
20	Α.	160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City, Utah.
21		PRESIDING OFFICER: Let me interrupt for a
22	second.	I'm sorry. I didn't swear the witness.
23		MS. SCHMID: Oh, sorry.
24		PRESIDING OFFICER: That's okay.
25		Ms. Benvegnu-Springer, good afternoon.
		Page 16

1	MS. BENVEGNU-SPRINGER: Good afternoon.
2	PRESIDING OFFICER: Do you swear to tell the
3	truth here today?
4	MS. BENVEGNU-SPRINGER: I do.
5	PRESIDING OFFICER: Great. Thank you. Please
6	proceed.
7	Q. (BY MS. SCHMID) Ms. Benvegnu-Springer, did
8	you participate in the preparation and filing of the
9	Division's action request response dated October 19th,
10	2022, in this docket?
11	A. I did.
12	Q. Do you adopt this response as part of your
13	testimony here today?
14	A. I do.
15	MS. SCHMID: The Division would like to
16	request the admission of its action request response
17	dated October 19th, 2022, in Docket Number 057
18	22-057-14.
19	PRESIDING OFFICER: Any objections?
20	MS. CLARK: No objection.
21	MR. MOORE: No objection.
22	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you very much. No
23	problem here.
24	Q. (BY MS. SCHMID) Do you have a summary to
25	present today?
	Page 17

Τ	A. I do.
2	Q. Please proceed.
3	A. On September 30th, 2022, Dominion Energy filed
4	its application seeking Commission approval to amortize
5	the energy efficiency deferred account balance,
6	decrease the energy efficiency rate, and have the new
7	rate effective November 1st, 2022. The current
8	financial position of the energy efficiency program
9	shows a credit, or negative balance, of 1.3 million,
10	resulting from over-collection from ratepayers.
11	The objective was to calculate a new rate
12	which will collect enough funds to cover the expenses
13	but minimize the amount of interest paid by the
14	Company. The account balance is intended to fluctuate
15	above or below zero during the year with an intended
16	net interest close to zero.
17	The Company provided two rate analysis
18	scenarios: A, a rate with no change and, B, a rate
19	decrease to 0.20321 cents. The Division conducted a
20	third analysis scenario, C, a rate of 0.23000 that was
21	in the middle. Scenarios A and C result in
22	over-collecting and paying interest.
23	As proposed by Dominion, Scenario B should be
24	the new proposed rate because over-collecting and
25	under-collecting will be balanced. The proposed rate

1	decrease would minimize net interest for the effective
2	period of November 1st, 2022, through October 31st,
3	2023, to 0.
4	Based on the projected balances, the new
5	proposed rate will help meet the financial goals of the
6	energy efficiency program. The proposed energy
7	efficiency amortization rate decreases from the current
8	rate of 0.27767 to 0.20321 per dekatherm, or a decrease
9	of \$0.07446 per dekatherm.
10	If the Commission approves this application,
11	the typical residential customer who uses 70 dekatherms
12	a year will see a reduction in their annual bill of
13	\$5.23 or .67 percent independent of any other decrease
14	or increase of any other natural gas rates.
15	The Division supports Dominion's request to
16	amortize the energy efficiency deferred account balance
17	and decrease the rate and recommends that the
18	Commission approve the application on an interim basis
19	until the Division completes a more thorough review and
20	audit. Final recommendations will be provided later.
21	The proposed rate is in the public interest
22	and represents just and reasonable rates for Utah
23	customers. The Division reviewed the tariff sheets and
24	recommended that the Commission approve the application
25	as presented. The Division will continue to monitor

1	the overall program and individual measures to ensure
2	that the public's interest continues to be served.
3	This concludes my summary. Thank you.
4	MS. SCHMID: Thank you. Ms. Benvegnu-Springer
5	is now available for cross-examination questions and
6	questions from the hearing officer.
7	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you very much.
8	Mr. Moore, any questions?
9	MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.
10	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Clark?
11	MS. CLARK: No questions here. Thank you.
12	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. And I don't have
13	any questions either. Thank you very much.
14	MS. BENVEGNU-SPRINGER: Thank you.
15	MS. SCHMID: The Division has nothing further
16	in this docket.
17	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Let's go on to the
18	next docket, which is the docket ending in 15.
19	Ms. Clark, do you have a witness?
20	MS. CLARK: Thank you. We once again call
21	Mr. Stephenson.
22	
23	JORDAN STEPHENSON
24	having been sworn, testifies further as follows:
25	
	Page 20

1	DIRECT EXAMINATION
2	BY MS. CLARK:
3	Q. I will remind you once again you're still
4	under oath. Mr. Stephenson, I will skip the
5	pleasantries and instructions because I think we know
6	who you are now.
7	I will ask you, however the Company filed
8	in this docket an application with the accompanying
9	Exhibits 1.1 through 1.5. Did you also prepare this
10	application and accompanying exhibits, or did you cause
11	them to be prepared by someone else?
12	A. Yes.
13	Q. Do you adopt their contents as your testimony
14	today?
15	A. Yes.
16	MS. CLARK: The Company moves for the
17	admission of the application and accompanying Exhibits
18	1.1 through 1.5.
19	PRESIDING OFFICER: Any objections?
20	MR. MOORE: No objection.
21	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid?
22	MS. SCHMID: No objection.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Motion granted.
24	MS. CLARK: Thank you. Mr. Stephenson, can
25	you please summarize the relief the Company seeks in
	Page 21

1	this docket?
2	A. Yes. In this docket the Company requests to
3	amortize the conservation enabling tariff balancing
4	account. Section 2.08 of the Company's tariff requires
5	that the Company file a conservation enabling tariff
6	amortization application at least annually with the
7	Commission, and this filing meets that requirement.
8	As of August 31st, 2022, the Company the
9	sorry.
10	As of August 31st, 2022, the balance in the
11	balancing account was \$4,112,009. If approved, this
L2	would result in an increase of \$.81 or .11 percent paid
13	by the typical customer using 70 dekatherms per year.
14	The proposed rates are just, reasonable, and in the
15	public interest. Therefore, the Company requests that
16	the rates be approved with rates going into effect on
17	November 1st, 2022.
18	And this concludes my summary.
L9	MS. CLARK: Mr. Stephenson is available for
20	cross-examination and hearing officer's questions.
21	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.
22	Mr. Moore, any questions?
23	MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.
24	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid?
25	MS. SCHMID: No questions. Thank you.
	Page 22

1	PRESIDING OFFICER: And I have no questions
2	either.
3	MS. CLARK: The Company has nothing further on
4	this docket.
5	PRESIDING OFFICER: Great. Thank you.
6	Ms. Schmid, does the Division have a witness on this
7	docket?
8	MS. SCHMID: Yes. The Division once again
9	calls Mr. Cazier, and he is still under oath.
10	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you.
11	
12	RUSSELL CAZIER
13	having been sworn, testifies as follows:
14	
15	DIRECT EXAMINATION
16	BY MS. SCHMID:
17	Q. Mr. Cazier, previously we discussed an action
18	request response that the Division prepared and filed
19	in three dockets. The docket of interest presently is
20	the one ending in 15, the amortization of the
21	conservation enabling tariff.
22	Did you prepare and cause to be filed this
23	action request response in confidential and redacted
24	form insofar as it pertains to docket ending in 15?
25	A. Yes.
	Page 23

1	Q. Do you adopt the contents of this action
2	request response insofar as it pertains to the docket
3	ending in 15 as your testimony today?
4	A. I do. But I do have one typo in this portion.
5	Q. Could you please give us that correction?
6	A. Yes. The statement indicating the previous
7	filing amount was 4.1 in the memorandum, and it should
8	be 2.8 million.
9	Q. And
10	A. It would be on page 12.
11	Q. And could you give us further direction?
12	A. Page 12. It appears to be line 4.
13	Q. Thank you very much. With that correction, do
14	you adopt the contents of the action request response
15	insofar as it relates to docket ending in 15?
16	A. Yes.
17	Q. Do you have a summary to present today?
18	A. I do.
19	Q. Please proceed.
20	A. The conservation enabling tariff rate is
21	designed to allow Dominion to collect the Commission
22	authorized revenue per customer. In Docket 22-057-15,
23	Dominion requests to amortize the August 2022
24	under-collected balance of 4.1 million. Their previous
25	filing, which was 21-057-20, requested to amortize an
	Page 24
	rage 24

1	under-collected balance of 2.8 million.
2	If approved independently, the effect of this
3	change for the typical GS residential customer using 70
4	dekatherms per year will see an increase in their total
5	annual bill of \$.81 or .11 percent. The proposed
6	change is in the public's interest and represents just
7	and reasonable rates for Utah customers. The Division
8	recommends the Commission approve the requested rate
9	change in Docket 22-057-15 as a final rate with the
10	November 1, 2022, effective date, as it is not subject
11	to a Division audit.
12	This concludes my summary.
13	Q. Thank you.
14	MS. SCHMID: Mr. Cazier is now available for
15	questions from the parties and from the hearing
16	officer.
17	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Mr. Moore, any
18	questions?
19	MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.
20	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Clark, any questions?
21	MS. CLARK: I have no questions. Thanks.
22	PRESIDING OFFICER: I have no questions
23	either. Thank you.
24	MS. SCHMID: The Division has nothing further
25	in this docket. Thank you.
	Page 25

1	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Let's move to the
2	next docket, 22-057-16. Ms. Clark?
3	MS. CLARK: Thank you. The Company is going
4	to give Mr. Stephenson a break, and we instead call
5	Jessica Ipson.
6	MS. IPSON: Good afternoon.
7	PRESIDING OFFICER: Good afternoon.
8	Ms. Ipson, do you swear to tell the truth?
9	MS. IPSON: I do.
10	PRESIDING OFFICER: Great. Thank you.
11	
12	JESSICA IPSON
13	having been sworn, testifies as follows:
14	
15	DIRECT EXAMINATION
16	BY MS. CLARK:
17	Q. Ms. Ipson, please state your full name and
18	business address for the record.
19	A. My name is Jessica Ipson. My address is 5
20	I'm sorry. My business address is 333 South State
21	Street, Salt Lake City, Utah.
22	Q. And what position do you hold with the
23	Company?
24	A. I'm a regulatory specialist.
25	Q. Ms. Ipson, in this docket the Company filed an
	Page 26

1	application with the accompanying Exhibits 1.1 through
2	1.8. Did you prepare or cause those to be prepared?
3	A. Yes.
4	Q. Do you have any corrections to those
5	documents?
6	A. I do have one correction. If you would go to
7	DEU Exhibit 1.5, page 1, on line number 3, column F,
8	the 191 account balance for commodity costs that
9	total should tie to footnote number 2. So that amount
10	should be \$61,126,894. And then since that number
11	changed, the total in line number 4, column F that
12	total would be \$817,798,563.
13	And then the last correction on this sheet is
14	footnote 4. It says prior proceeds docket number.
15	That docket number should actually read 22-057-08.
16	Q. And with those corrections, do you adopt the
17	contents of the application and the accompanying
18	exhibits as your testimony today?
19	A. Yes.
20	MS. CLARK: The Company moves for the
21	admission of the corrected application and accompanying
22	Exhibits 1.1 through 1.8.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Any
24	objections?
25	MR. MOORE: No objections from the Office.
	Page 27

1	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid?
2	MS. SCHMID: None from the Division.
3	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you. Motion
4	granted.
5	MS. CLARK: Thank you.
6	Q. (BY MS. CLARK) Ms. Ipson, can you please
7	summarize the relief the Company seeks with this
8	application.
9	A. Yes. In pass-through Docket Number 22-057-16,
L O	Dominion Energy respectfully asked the Utah Public
L1	Service Commission for approval of \$845,082,562 in Utah
L2	gas costs coverage. This represents an overall
L3	increase of 1 million oh, I'm sorry. Let me start
L4	over \$128,167,379. The components of this increase
L 5	are, first, an increase of \$128,046,117 in commodity
L6	costs and, second, an increase of \$121,262 in supplier
L7	non-gas costs.
L8	The increase being proposed in this filing is
L9	due to higher forecasted gas costs for the test period.
20	This request includes updating the amortization of the
21	commodity portion of the actual August 2022
22	under-collected 191 balance of \$61,126,894 by a \$.53231
23	per dekatherm debit surcharge.
24	RIN proceeds of \$139,370 were generated
25	through the company's CNG station, decreasing the NGV

1	class commodity by a credit of \$.48096 per dekatherm.
2	The Company is also requesting to continue to amortize
3	the under-collected under-collected SNG costs of
4	\$3,222,746 which leads to the debit amortization
5	charges shown on Exhibit 1.5, page 6.
6	The cost of purchased gas was developed using
7	forecasted gas prices by both S&P Global Platts and IHS
8	Markit. The LNG facility will be placed into service
9	during this test period. Those costs associated with
10	LNG facility have been directly assigned to the FS and
11	GS classes.
12	As the Division mentioned in their action
13	response request dated on October 19th, 2022, the
14	Company did meet with the Division and agreed to
15	partially fill the LNG tank to have the potential
16	withdrawal availability of this winter season of three
17	to four days. At this storage level, it would also
18	allow the Company to conduct operational testing of the
19	new facility.
20	If this application is approved, a typical
21	Utah GS customer using 70 dekatherms per year would see
22	an increase of \$78.16 or a total annual increase of
23	about 10.29 percent. These rates are just, reasonable,
24	and in the public interest. Therefore, we request the
25	rates proposed in Commodity and SNG be allowed to go

1	into effect on November 1st, 2022, on an interim basis.
2	MS. CLARK: Ms. Ipson is now available for
3	cross-examination or Commission questions.
4	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you, Ms. Ipson.
5	Mr. Moore?
6	MR. MOORE: No questions.
7	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid, any questions?
8	MS. SCHMID: No questions.
9	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. And I you've
10	answered my questions. So thank you.
11	Okay. Why don't we go to why don't we go
12	to the Division's witness on Docket Number 6 ending
13	in 16.
14	MS. SCHMID: Thank you. The Division's
15	witness in this docket is Mr. Cazier, once again, who
16	has been sworn.
17	
18	RUSSELL CAZIER
19	having been sworn, testifies as follows:
20	
21	DIRECT EXAMINATION
22	BY MS. SCHMID:
23	Q. Mr. Cazier, in conjunction with your
24	employment at the Division, did you prepare or cause to
25	be prepared and filed the Division's action request
	Page 30

1	response dated October 19th in both confidential and
2	redacted form insofar as it pertains to the docket
3	ending in 16?
4	A. Yes, I did.
5	Q. Do you have any corrections to this response
6	insofar as it pertains to that docket?
7	A. I do have one final correction, yes.
8	Q. Could you please direct us to that?
9	A. Yes. It would be on page 13, in which I
LO	indicated that the effective date I put a typo in
L1	there as 2023. It's on the second paragraph, line two,
L2	and that should be 2022.
L3	Q. With that correction, do you adopt the
L 4	contents of this Division action request response
L5	insofar as it pertains to the docket ending in 16 as
L6	part of your testimony here today?
L7	A. Yes, I do.
L8	MS. SCHMID: With that, the Division would
L9	like to move for the admission of its consolidated
20	action request response in dockets ending in 13, 15,
21	and 16.
22	PRESIDING OFFICER: So all three dockets?
23	MS. SCHMID: Yes, please.
24	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Any objections,
25	Mr. Moore?

1	
1	MR. MOORE: No objections. Thank you.
2	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Clark, any objections?
3	MS. CLARK: No objection.
4	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Motion grand. They
5	are all admitted.
6	MS. SCHMID: Thank you.
7	Q. (BY MS. SCHMID) Mr. Cazier, do you have a
8	summary to present today?
9	A. I do.
10	Q. Please proceed.
11	A. In Docket 22-057-16, or the Pass-Through
12	Application, Dominion requests approval to increase the
13	commodity rates and charges for national gas service by
14	128.1 million. The proposal increase the proposal
15	includes an increase of 121,000 in the supplier non-gas
16	portion of the rates and a \$128 million increase in the
17	commodity portion of the rates.
18	As of August 31st, 2022, the commodity portion
19	of the 191 account was under-collected by 61.1 million,
20	and Dominion is proposing to establish a debt
21	amortization of \$.53 per dekatherm to recover the
22	under-collection.
23	The driving force behind the commodity price
24	increase is higher forecasted natural gas costs for the
25	test year ending October 31st, 2023. The filing

1	consists of cost-of-service gas from Wexpro, contract
2	and market purchases, partial filling of the LNG
3	storage tank, other additional storage, and
4	transportation costs as well.
5	The projected cost is an increase of \$.66 per
6	dekatherm in the cost-of-service gas and an increase of
7	\$1.52 for the per dekatherm for contract and market
8	purchase gas compared to June 1st, 2022, in the filing.
9	This filing represents the second largest increase in
10	natural gas costs this year and is directly related to
11	the high market price of purchased gas.
12	At the LNG facility, its delayed completion in
13	2022 has resulted in a later than anticipated start to
14	filling the LNG storage tank. This delay will limit
15	opportunities for the facility's use during the 2022,
16	2023 heating season. The Division has expressed
17	concern about the prudence of fully filling the LNG
18	storage tank during this heating season while forecast
19	prices are high.
20	The Division and the Company have discussed
21	partially fueling approximately 30 to 40 percent of the
22	LNG storage tank which would allow for three to
23	four days of LNG withdrawal for any possible
24	opportunities of need this season. The Company should

continue to monitor the market price and use prudence

25

1	and good judgment in determining when to make market
2	purchases to completely fill the new LNG storage tank.
3	If this filing is approved, the effect of its
4	change for the typical GS residential customer using 70
5	dekatherms per year will see an increase in their total
6	annual bill of \$78.16 or approximately 10 or
7	10.29 percent.
8	The Division has reviewed the Dominion's
9	application and finds the proposed rate increase to be
10	just and reasonable for Utah customers and recommends
11	the Commission approve the rate changes as outlined by
12	Dominion in this docket on an interim basis with the
13	proposed effective date of November 1st, 2022.
14	This concludes my summary.
15	MS. SCHMID: Thank you. Mr. Cazier is now
16	available for cross-examination questions and questions
17	from the hearing office.
18	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Mr. Moore?
19	MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.
20	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Clark?
21	MS. CLARK: I have no questions.
22	PRESIDING OFFICER: I have one question.
23	On the timing of the filling of the LNG
24	facility, I thought I understood from Ms. Ipson's
25	testimony that you guys had come to some sort of
	Page 34

1	agreement about how much it would be filled and when.
2	Did I did I misunderstand that concept?
3	MR. CAZIER: No. That was correct.
4	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. So Ms. Ipson's
5	testimony was reflecting
6	MR. CAZIER: We both spoke to the same
7	amounts.
8	PRESIDING OFFICER: And it was a little more
9	definitive about that an agreement has been reached on
10	that?
11	MR. CAZIER: Yes.
12	PRESIDING OFFICER: Great. That's the only
13	question I had. Thank you.
14	MS. SCHMID: The Division has nothing further.
15	Thank you.
16	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Then why don't we
17	move to the final docket, which is docket ending number
18	17.
19	MS. CLARK: The Company calls Jesse Jackson.
20	PRESIDING OFFICER: Good afternoon,
21	Mr. Jackson.
22	MR. JACKSON: Good afternoon.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: Do you swear to tell the
24	truth?
25	MR. JACKSON: I do.
	Page 35

1	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you very much.
2	THEOLOGIC COLLEGE THAT YOU VELY MACH.
	TEGGE TAGEGON
3	JESSE JACKSON
4	having been sworn, testifies as follows:
5	
6	DIRECT EXAMINATION
7	BY MS. CLARK:
8	Q. Mr. Jackson, please state your full name and
9	business address for the record.
10	A. My name is Jesse Jackson. My business address
11	is 333 South State Street, Salt Lake City, Utah.
12	Q. What position do you hold with the Company?
13	A. I'm a regulatory specialist.
14	Q. Mr. Jackson, the Company has submitted an
15	application with accompanying Exhibits 1.1 through 1.3
16	in this docket. Did you prepare those or cause them to
17	be prepared?
18	A. Yes.
19	Q. Do you adopt the contents of those documents
20	as your testimony today?
21	A. Yes, I do.
22	MS. CLARK: The Company moves for the
23	admission of the application and Exhibits 1.1 through
24	1.3.
25	PRESIDING OFFICER: Any objection, Mr. Moore?
	Page 36

1	MR. MOORE: No objection.
2	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid?
3	MS. SCHMID: No objection.
4	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Motion granted.
5	MS. CLARK: Thank you.
6	Q. (BY MS. CLARK) Mr. Jackson, please summarize
7	the relief the Company seeks in this application.
8	A. Yes. In this docket, the Company requests an
9	adjustment to the transportation imbalance charge to
10	appropriately collect costs associated with managing
11	imbalanced dekatherms transported on the Company's
12	distribution system.
13	The proposed imbalance charge reflects costs
14	borne by the Company to manage net imbalance dekatherms
15	of transportation service customers divided by the
16	imbalance dekatherms over the 5 percent tolerance
17	threshold. The resulting imbalance rate of \$9.45 (sic)
18	is 10 percent higher than the previous transportation
19	imbalance charge. This charge will only be applied to
20	transportation service volumes that differ from
21	nomination volumes by more than 5 percent.
22	The transportation imbalance charge continues
23	to serve its intended service and is just, reasonable,
24	and in the public's interest. The Company requests
25	approval of these interim rates effective November 1st,

Page 37

1	2022.
2	And this concludes my summary. Thank you.
3	MS. CLARK: Mr. Jackson is available for
4	cross-examination and hearing officer's questions.
5	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Mr. Moore, any
6	questions?
7	MR. MOORE: No questions, thank you.
8	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Schmid, any questions?
9	MS. SCHMID: I do have one for clarification
10	purposes.
11	
12	CROSS-EXAMINATION
13	BY MS. SCHMID:
14	Q. Mr. Jackson, is it possible that you provided
15	a number in dollars when it should have been in cents?
16	A. That is very possible. It's let me see
17	that the rate is yeah. Point 0 \$.945.
18	Q. Thank you very much.
19	A. Thank you.
20	PRESIDING OFFICER: Can we have the record
21	reflect specifically where that is?
22	MR. JACKSON: The the new proposed rate is
23	on Exhibit 1.1, column J, line 11.
24	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Thank you. Does
25	that align with what you see, Mrs. Schmid?
	Page 38

1	MS. SCHMID: It does. Thank you.
2	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Great. Thank you.
3	Thank you, Mr. Jackson. I don't have any questions for
4	you right now. So let's go to the Division's witness,
5	please.
6	(Phone ring.)
7	MS. SCHMID: How embarrassing. Excuse me.
8	Okay. I thought it was all on silent, but apparently
9	if you have an alarm set, it rings through.
10	PRESIDING OFFICER: Time to wake up.
11	MS. SCHMID: So here we go. For this docket,
12	the Division's witness is Mr. Ryan Daigle. May he
13	please be sworn?
14	PRESIDING OFFICER: Good afternoon,
15	Mr. Daigle. Do you swear to tell the truth?
16	MR. DAIGLE: Good afternoon. Yes, I do.
17	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you very much.
18	
19	RYAN DAIGLE
20	having been sworn, testifies as follows:
21	
22	DIRECT EXAMINATION
23	BY MS. SCHMID:
24	Q. Good afternoon. Could you please state and
25	spell your name for the record.
	Page 39

1	A. Ryan Daigle, R-y-a-n D-a-i-g-l-e.
2	Q. By whom are you employed?
3	A. The Division of Public Utilities.
4	Q. Your title?
5	A. Utility analyst.
6	Q. And your business address?
7	A. 160 East 300 South, Salt Lake City.
8	Q. In conjunction with your employment at the
9	Division, did you cause the Division's action request
10	response in the docket ending in 17 to be filed in both
11	confidential and redacted form?
12	A. Yes.
13	Q. Do you have any changes or corrections to that
14	action request response?
15	A. I do not.
16	Q. Do you adopt that action request response as
17	your testimony here today?
18	A. Yes.
19	MS. SCHMID: With that, the Division would
20	like to move for the admission of its confidential and
21	redacted action request response in the docket ending
22	in 17 in both confidential and redacted form.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Any
24	objections, Mr. Moore?
25	MR. MOORE: No objections from the Office.
	Page 40

1	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Ms. Clark?
2	MS. CLARK: No objections.
3	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Motion granted.
4	MS. SCHMID: Thank you.
5	Q. (BY MS. SCHMID) Do you have a summary to
6	present today Mr. Daigle?
7	A. I do.
8	Q. Please proceed.
9	A. Thank you. The transportation imbalance
10	charge was established to charge transportation
11	customers for the supplier non-gas services which are
12	being used on the company's natural gas distribution
13	system. The calculation of this rate is based on the
14	methodology approved in Docket 14-057-31 and is to be
15	adjusted with each pass-through filing and in the
16	general rate case.
17	This is the second adjustment in 2022. And
18	with this and with this docket, the proposed
19	adjustment represents a change from \$.08592 to \$.09449
20	per dekatherm and is calculated based on the actual
21	volumes of gas used by the transportation customers for
22	the 12 months ending August 31st, 2022.
23	This rate applies to customers who are taking
24	service under the transportation rate schedules and any
25	amount collected as credited to GS customers through

Page 41

1	the 191 account. This transportation imbalance charge
2	rate does not impact all transportation customers and
3	applies only when customers nominations are outside of
4	a 5 percent daily tolerance limit. Transportation
5	customers can minimize or entirely avoid the TIC
6	through transportation imbalance charge through
7	accurate daily gas nominations.
8	Based on our initial review, the Division
9	believes that the requested changes and the resulting
10	rates are just, reasonable, and in the public interest.
11	The Division recommends that the proposed rate and
12	changes be approved on an interim basis until a full
13	audit review of the 191 account can be completed.
14	This concludes my summary. Thank you.
15	MS. SCHMID: Thank you very much. Mr. Daigle
16	is now available for examination questions and
17	questions from the hearing officer.
18	PRESIDING OFFICER: Thank you. Mr. Moore, any
19	questions?
20	MR. MOORE: No questions. Thank you.
21	PRESIDING OFFICER: Ms. Clark, any questions?
22	MS. CLARK: I have no questions. Thanks.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: I've got a quick question
24	for you. So in preparation for this hearing, I was
25	looking at some earlier dockets and transcripts, and
	Page 42

1	similar to this docket, there's been a concern
2	expressed by the Division about the accuracy of the gas
3	nomination processes and the impact of transportation
4	customers on DEU's distribution system, and I think
5	that's actually echoed on page 3 of the filing.
6	I just want to know, have you all had any
7	discussions recently about this issue?
8	MR. DAIGLE: We have.
9	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay.
10	MR. DAIGLE: But beyond that, we're going to
11	sit down with the Company, review it, and determine
12	what's going on
13	PRESIDING OFFICER: Wonderful.
14	MR. DAIGLE: with those with those
15	imbalances.
16	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Is this your
17	understanding?
18	MR. JACKSON: Yes.
19	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Great. That's the
20	only question I had. Thank you very much.
21	MS. SCHMID: The Division has nothing further
22	in this docket. Thank you.
23	PRESIDING OFFICER: Okay. Well, we've hit the
24	last number, 17, so I believe that's it. Is there
25	anything else anybody needs to address?
	Page 43

1	Okay. I know that we have an order that we
2	need to issue as soon as we can with an effective date
3	of November 1st. So we're aware of that, and we will
4	do that. And if there's nothing else, I'll thank you
5	all for your time, and we're adjourned.
6	(Hearing concluded at 1:44 p.m. MT.)
7	* * * *
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
	De 44
	Page 44

1	REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2	STATE OF UTAH)
)
3	COUNTY OF UTAH)
4	
5	I, BROOKE SIMMS, a State Certified Court Reporter
6	and Registered Professional Reporter, hereby certify:
7	THAT the foregoing proceedings were taken before
8	me at the time and place set forth in the caption hereof;
9	that the proceedings were taken down by me in shorthand and
10	thereafter my notes were transcribed through computer-aided
11	transcription; and the foregoing transcript constitutes a
12	full, true, and accurate record of such oral proceedings
13	had, and of the whole thereof.
14	I have subscribed my name on this 3rd
15	day of November, 2022.
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	BrookeJSims
23	100019
	Brooke Simms, RPR, CCR, CSR
24	
25	
	Page 45

0	121,000 32:15	44:3	26 3:14
0	121,262 28:16	2	28936 45:23
0 19:3 38:17	121,202 20.10 128 32:16		3
0.07446 19:9	128,046,117	2 27:9	_
0.20321 18:19	28:15	2.08 22:4	3 27:7 43:5
19:8	128,167,379	2.8 24:8 25:1	3,222,746 29:4
0.23000 18:20	28:14	2022 1:17 4:4	30 3:16 33:21
0.27767 19:8	128.1 32:14	8:12 11:4 12:10	300 1:21 2:11,16
02 7:22 12:4	12:58 1:18	14:9,20 17:10,17	10:22 16:20
057 17:17	13 3:7 5:25	18:3,7 19:2 22:8	40:7
08592 41:19	10:25 11:8,11	22:10,17 24:23	30th 18:3
09449 41:19		25:10 28:21	31st 14:9 19:2
1	31:9,20	29:13 30:1	22:8,10 32:18,25
1 25:10 27:7	139,370 28:24 13th 11:15	31:12 32:18	41:22
28:13		33:8,13,15 34:13	333 2:6 6:22
1,356,478 14:10	14 13:4,20 15:22	38:1 41:17,22	13:18 26:20
1.1 7:4,12 13:22	14-057-31 41:14	45:15	36:11
14:25 21:9,18	15 11:8 20:18	2023 19:3 31:11	36 3:18
27:1,22 36:15,23	23:20,24 24:3,15	32:25 33:16	366-0353 2:12
38:23	31:20	21 3:11	2:17
1.3 18:9 36:15	15,700 8:3 11:23	21-057-20 24:25	38 3:18
1.3. 7:4,12 36:24	16 3:9 11:8	22-057-08 27:15	39 3:20
1.4 8:16	30:13 31:3,15,21	22-057-13 1:3	3rd 45:14
1.5 7:24 8:16	160 1:21 2:11,16	3:3 4:8 11:20	4
11:22 27:7 29:5	10:22 16:20	22-057-14 1:5	4 24:12 27:11,14
1.5. 21:9,18	40:7	3:6 4:11 17:18	4,112,009 22:11
1.52 33:7	17 5:25 35:18	22-057-15 1:7	4.1 24:7,24
1.6. 13:23 14:25	40:10,22 43:24	3:10 4:13 24:22	4.1 24.7,24 40 33:21
1.8. 27:2,22	191 27:8 28:22	25:9	40 33.21 403 1:22
10 3:5 34:6	32:19 42:1,13	22-057-16 1:9	45433 2:7
37:18	19th 11:4 17:9	3:13 4:16 26:2	
10.29 29:23 34:7	17:17 29:13	28:9 32:11	48096 29:1
10.29 29:23 34:7 107 8:1 11:25	31:1	22-057-17 1:12	4th 1:22
	1:00 4:5	3:17 4:19	5
11 22:12 25:5	1:44 44:6	23 3:12	5 26:19 37:16,21
38:23	1st 8:12 12:10	24 1:17	42:4
12 8:9 24:10,12	14:20 18:7 19:2	24th 4:4	5.23 14:15 19:13
41:22	22:17 30:1 33:8		53 32:21
	34:13 37:25		

[53231 - approval]

52221 20.22	222224 1.60	admitted 7.15	25.7
53231 28:22	account 1:6,8	admitted 7:15	amounts 35:7
5th 2:11,16	4:12,15 14:8,9	8:25 15:7 32:5	analysis 10:20
6	18:5,14 19:16	adopt 7:7 8:18	18:17,20
6 3:4 29:5 30:12	22:4,11 27:8	11:10 14:1	analyst 40:5
61,126,894 27:10	32:19 42:1,13	17:12 21:13	annual 7:22 8:1
28:22	accuracy 43:2	24:1,14 27:16	11:19 12:4
61.1 32:19	accurate 42:7	31:13 36:19	19:12 25:5
66 33:5	45:12	40:16	29:22 34:6
67 19:13	action 11:7,10	afternoon 4:3	annually 22:6
69 14:15	17:9,16 23:17,23	6:6,8 10:1,2,13	answered 30:10
7	24:1,14 29:12	16:6,7,25 17:1	anticipated
	30:25 31:14,20	26:6,7 35:20,22	33:13
70 12:3 14:16	40:9,14,16,21	39:14,16,24	anybody 43:25
19:11 22:13	actual 28:21	ag's 5:6	apparently 39:8
25:3 29:21 34:4	41:20	agreed 29:14	appearances
751,000 8:6	addition 8:5	agreement 35:1	4:24
751,147 8:6	11:21	35:9	appears 24:12
77,104 11:21	additional 8:22	agutah.gov 2:13	application 1:3,5
78.16 29:22 34:6	33:3	2:18	1:7,9,12 4:8,11
8	address 6:21	aided 45:10	4:13,17,19 7:3
	address 6:21 10:21 13:16	aided 45:10 alarm 39:9	4:13,17,19 7:3 7:11,19 9:20
801 2:12,17			· ·
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5	10:21 13:16	alarm 39:9	7:11,19 9:20
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19	alarm 39:9 align 38:25	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11 9 9.45 37:17	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17 4:20 7:21 10:25	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21 amortize 1:5,8	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19 applies 41:23 42:3
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17 4:20 7:21 10:25 14:11 37:9	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21 amortize 1:5,8 4:12,14 14:8	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19 applies 41:23 42:3 apply 11:23
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11 9 9.45 37:17	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17 4:20 7:21 10:25 14:11 37:9 41:17,19	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21 amortize 1:5,8 4:12,14 14:8 18:4 19:16 22:3	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19 applies 41:23 42:3
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11 9 9.45 37:17 945 38:17	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17 4:20 7:21 10:25 14:11 37:9 41:17,19 admission 7:11	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21 amortize 1:5,8 4:12,14 14:8 18:4 19:16 22:3 24:23,25 29:2	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19 applies 41:23 42:3 apply 11:23 appropriately 37:10
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11 9 9.45 37:17 945 38:17 a accompanying	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 1 4:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17 4:20 7:21 10:25 14:11 37:9 41:17,19 admission 7:11 8:22 14:24 17:16 21:17	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21 amortize 1:5,8 4:12,14 14:8 18:4 19:16 22:3 24:23,25 29:2 amount 11:22	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19 applies 41:23 42:3 apply 11:23 appropriately 37:10 approval 14:7
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11 9 9.45 37:17 945 38:17 a accompanying 7:3,11 13:22	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17 4:20 7:21 10:25 14:11 37:9 41:17,19 admission 7:11 8:22 14:24	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21 amortize 1:5,8 4:12,14 14:8 18:4 19:16 22:3 24:23,25 29:2 amount 11:22 18:13 24:7 27:9	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19 applies 41:23 42:3 apply 11:23 appropriately 37:10
801 2:12,17 81 22:12 25:5 817,798,563 27:12 84111 1:23 84114 2:12,17 84145-0433 2:7 845,082,562 28:11 9 9.45 37:17 945 38:17 a accompanying	10:21 13:16 16:19 26:18,19 26:20 36:9,10 40:6 43:25 adjourned 44:5 adjust 14:7 adjusted 41:15 adjustment 1:3 1:10,12 4:9,17 4:20 7:21 10:25 14:11 37:9 41:17,19 admission 7:11 8:22 14:24 17:16 21:17 27:21 31:19	alarm 39:9 align 38:25 allow 7:23 24:21 29:18 33:22 allowed 29:25 amortization 19:7 22:6 23:20 28:20 29:4 32:21 amortize 1:5,8 4:12,14 14:8 18:4 19:16 22:3 24:23,25 29:2 amount 11:22 18:13 24:7 27:9 41:25	7:11,19 9:20 13:22 14:24 18:4 19:10,18,24 21:8,10,17 22:6 27:1,17,21 28:8 29:20 32:12 34:9 36:15,23 37:7 applied 37:19 applies 41:23 42:3 apply 11:23 appropriately 37:10 approval 14:7 18:4 28:11

[approve - class]

12:7 19:18,24 25:8 34:11 25:8 34:11 25:8 34:11 25:8 34:11 25:8 34:11 25:8 34:11 25:10 25:12 25:10 25:2 25:20 34:3 41:14 42:12 25:10 25:2 25:10 24:24 25:10 24:28 25:10 24:28 25:10 24:28 25:10 24:28 25:10 24:23 26:10 2	annuara 0.17	avoid 42:5	business 6:21	ahanga 11.20
b	approve 9:17			change 11:20
approved 8:11 11:22 12:1 b 16:11 18:18,23 36:9,10 40:6 41:19 12:216 25:2 14:14,18 22:11 22:16 25:2 22:10 18:4 22:10 18:5,9 22:14:1 10:16 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 40:13 42:9,12 41:10,10 42:1 41:10,10 42:1 41:10,10 7:21 8:1 41:13 41:14 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13 41:13	· ·			
11:22 12:1		b	·	
14:14,18 22:11 22:16 25:2 29:20 34:3 41:14 42:12 25:1 27:8 28:22 26:4 41:13 20:1 13:1 20:1 20:2 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1 20:1		b 16:11 18:18,23	36:9,10 40:6	
22:16 25:2 29:20 34:3 41:14 42:12 approves 19:10 approximately 4:4 33:21 34:6 asked 28:10 assigned 29:10 assistance 1:4 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 8:8 9:18 11:1,18 12:9 associated 29:9 37:10 attorney 2:11,16 5:13 audit 12:11 19:20 25:11 42:13 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 28:21 32:18 41:24 21:2 believe 8:14 13:14 43:24 believes 42:9 benvegnu 3:8 5:16 15:24 16:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 17:4,7 20:4,14 beyond 43:10 bill 12:4 19:12 25:5 34:6 borne 37:14 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 18:20,21 calculated 41:20 calculated 41:20 calculated 41:20 calculated 41:20 calculated 41:20 calculation 41:13 call 5:23 6:2 9:24 13:5 20:20 26:21 36:11 42:13 23:9 35:19 case 41:16 cause 7:5 8:15 11:3 13:23 21:10 23:22 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 cazier 3:5,12,15 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 12:16,18 13:2 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:3 25:20,21 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4,7 3:11,14,18 4:2 4:25 5:23 6:1, 6:19 7:10,16,1 3:13 14:23 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:3 25:20,21 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4,7 3:11,14,18 4:2 25:1 27:8 28:22 balanced 18:25 balances 19:4 balancing 1:8 call 5:23 6:2 9:24 13:5 20:20 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:10 4:18 29:5 32: city 1:23 2:7,1 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:10 4:18 29:5 32: city 1:23 2:7,1 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:10 4:18 29:5 32: city 1:23 2:7,1 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4,5 3:19,16,20 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 21:10 23:22 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 28:2 10 24:25 36:16 40:9 28:2 10 24:25 36:3 36:1 36:10 36:10 36:10 36:10 36:10 36:10 36:10 36:10 36:10 36		balance 1:6 4:13	c	
18:14 19:16 22:10 24:24 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 28:10 24:3 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 25:1 27:8 28:22 26:4 26:4 26:4 27:1 26:1 27:1 26:1 27:1 26:1 27:1	· ·	14:9,10 18:5,9	c 2:1 4:1 10:16	
41:14 42:12 approves 19:10 approximately 4:4 33:21 34:6 asked 28:10 assigned 29:10 assistance 1:4 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 8:8 9:18 11:1,18 12:9 associated 29:9 37:10 attorney 2:11,16 5:13 audit 12:11 19:20 25:11 42:13 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 28:21 32:18 41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 approximately 4:4 33:21 34:6 balances 19:4 balancing 1:8 4:15 22:3,11 base 11:22 5:1 27:8 28:22 balanced 18:25 balances 19:4 calculated 41:20 calculation 41:13 call 5:23 6:2 9:24 13:5 20:20 26:4 calls 6:4 13:7 23:9 35:19 catellate 16:11 calculated 41:20 calculation 41:10,10 42:1 charges 1:10 4:18 29:5 32:: city 1:23 2:7,1 2:17 6:23 10:2 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4,7 3:11,14,18 4:2 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 cazier 3:5,12,15 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 11:216,18 13:2 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 20:10,11,19,2 20:10,11,19,2 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:3 34:20,21 26:2,3,16 27:2 26:2,3,16 27:2 26:2,3,16 27:2 26:2,3,16 27:2 26:2,3,16 27:2 28:5,6 30:2 32 28:5,6 30:2 32 28:5,6 30:2 32 28:5,6 30:2 32 28:5,6 30:2 32 37:9,13,19,19 41:10,10 42:1 charges 1:10 4:18 29:5 32:: city 1:23 2:7,1 2:17 6:23 10:2 13:19 16:20 26:21 36:11 40:7 13:19 16:20 26:21 36:11 40:7 13:19 16:20 26:21 36:11 40:7 13:19 16:20 26:21 36:11 40:7 23:9 35:19 24:25 5:23 6:2 29:24 13:5 20:20 26:21 36:11 40:7 23:9 35:19 24:21 25:5 34:6 24:25 5:23 26:14 3:5 26:4 21:10 23:22 27:2 30:24 27		18:14 19:16	18:20,21	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
approves 19:10 approximately 4:4 33:21 34:6 asked 28:10 assigned 29:10 assigned 29:10 assistance 1:4 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 8:8 9:18 11:1,18 12:9 associated 29:9 37:10 attorney 2:11,16 5:13 audit 12:11 19:20 25:11 42:13 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 28:21 32:18 41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 available 9:2 available 9:2 available 9:2 available 9:2 available 9:2 associated 38:25 balanced 18:25 balancing 1:8 41:13 call 5:23 6:2 9:24 13:5 20:20 26:4 calls 6:4 13:7 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 36:1 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 32:3 4:25 5:23 6:1, 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 5:23 6:1, 4:25 5:23 6:1, 4:25 5:23 6:1, 4:25 5:23 6:1, 4:25 5:23 6:1, 4:25 5:23 6:1, 4:25 5:23 6:1, 4:25 5:23 6:1, 4:36 4:36 4:36 20:20 26:4 calls 6:4 13:7 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 40:7 clarification 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4.7 3:11, 14, 18 4:2 2:2 27:2 30:24 3:51, 14, 18 4:2 2:2 27:2 30:24 3:51, 14, 18 4:2 2:2 27:2 30:24 3:51, 14, 18 4:2 2:2 27:2 30:24 3:51, 14, 18 4:2 2:2 27:2 30:24 3:51, 14, 18 4:2 2:2 2:39, 12, 17 2:16, 18 13:2 2:10, 23:23 2:10, 23:23 2:10, 23:23 2:10, 23:23		22:10 24:24	calculate 18:11	
approximately 4:4 33:21 34:6 balances 19:4 41:13 charges 1:10 assigned 29:10 assigned 29:10 4:15 22:3,11 26:4 29:24 13:5 20:20 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:18 29:3 35:19 2:18 30:1 2:18 30:1 2:18 30:1 2:18 30:1 2:18 30:1 2:19 16:20 2:10 24:28 2:19 16:20 2:17 6:23 10:2 2:21 36:21 2:21 36:21 2:21 36:11 40:7 2:18 30:1 2:19 23:9 35:19 2:21 36:11 40:7 2:11 10 23:22 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:21 30:24 2:22 30:24 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23 30:14 2:23		25:1 27:8 28:22	calculated 41:20	
4:4 33:21 34:6 balancing 1:8 4:113 4:18 29:5 32:3 asked 28:10 assigned 29:10 assistance 1:4 4:15 22:3,11 base 11:22 26:4 2:17 6:23 10:2 assistance 1:4 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 base 11:22 26:4 2:17 6:23 10:2 associated 29:9 37:10 attorney 2:11,16 basis 14:19 19:18 30:1 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:11 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 26:21 36:14 40:7 27:22 30:24 40:15 20:24 </th <th></th> <th>balanced 18:25</th> <th>calculation</th> <th></th>		balanced 18:25	calculation	
asked 28:10 assigned 29:10 4:15 22:3,11 base 11:22 9:24 13:5 20:20 city 1:23 2:7,1 assigned 29:10 assistance 1:4 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 base 11:22 based 19:4 41:13 calls 6:4 13:7 2:17 6:23 10:2 associated 29:9 37:10 basis 14:19 case 41:16 case 41		balances 19:4	41:13	
asked 28:10 4:15 22:3,11 9:24 13:5 20:20 city 1:23 2:7,1 assigned 29:10 29:10 26:4 217 6:23 10:2 assistance 1:4 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 41:20 42:8 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 41:20 42:8 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 4:19 2:9 41:20 42:8 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 associated 29:9 37:10 34:12 42:12 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 attorney 2:11,16 34:12 42:12 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 believe 8:14 13:14 43:24 21:10 23:22 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 8:21 9:1,10 8:21 9:1,10 12:23,24 13:5 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 30:15,18,23 32:7 31:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14 23:9,12,17 25:14		balancing 1:8	call 5:23 6:2	
assigned assistance 1:4 base 11:22 26:4 2:17 6:23 10:2 4:10,10 7:21 8:1 8:8 9:18 11:1,18 41:20 42:8 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 8:8 9:18 11:1,18 41:20 42:8 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 12:9 41:20 42:8 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 associated 29:9 37:10 34:12 42:12 23:9 35:19 26:21 36:11 attorney 2:11,16 34:12 42:12 34:12 42:12 22:10 23:22 22:10 23:22 believe 8:14 13:14 43:24 21:10 23:22 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 8:21 9:1,10 12:23,24 13:5 16:10,11,25 17:1 17:4,7 20:4,14 10:2,8,15 12:15 12:16,18 13:2 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 25:5 34:6 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 34:15 35:3,6,11 26:2,3,16 27:2 29:16 29:16 20:10,11,19,2 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16 29:16				
assistance 1:4 design assistance 1:2 design assistance 1:4 design assistance 1:2 design assistance 1:4 1:3 1:4 1:4 1:3 1:3 1:3 1:4		· ·		2:17 6:23 10:22
4:10,10 7:21 8:1 8:8 9:18 11:1,18 12:9 associated 29:9 37:10 attorney 2:11,16 5:13 audit 12:11 19:20 25:11 42:13 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 28:21 32:18 41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 available 9:2 41:20 42:8 basis 14:19 19:18 30:1 34:12 42:12 believe 8:14 13:14 43:24 believes 42:9 benvegnu 3:8 5:16 15:24 16:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 17:4,7 20:4,14 beyond 43:10 bill 12:4 19:12 25:5 34:6 borne 37:14 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 23:9 35:19 caption 45:8 case 41:16 cause 7:5 8:15 11:3 13:23 21:10 23:22 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 cazier 3:5,12,15 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 12:16,18 13:2 23:9 35:19 caption 45:8 case 41:16 cause 7:5 8:15 11:3 13:23 3:11,14,18 4:2 4:25 5:23 6:1, 6:19 7:10,16,10 12:23,24 13:5 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:9 35:19 caption 45:8 case 41:16 cause 7:5 8:15 11:3 13:23 21:10 23:22 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 caption 45:8 case 41:16 cause 7:5 8:15 11:3 13:23 3:11,14,18 4:2 4:25 5:23 6:1, 6:19 7:10,16,10 12:23,24 13:5 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:9 35:19 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4,7 3:11,14,18 4:2 4:25 5:23 6:1, 6:19 7:10,16,10 12:23,24 13:5 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:9 35:19 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4,7 3:11,14,18 4:2 4:25 5:23 6:1, 6:19 7:10,16,10 12:23,24 13:5 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:9 35:19 caption 45:8 case 41:16 cause 7:5 8:15 11:3 13:23 3:11,14,18 4:2 4:25 5:23 6:1, 6:19 7:10,16,10 12:23,24 13:5 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:3 25:20,21 26:2,3,16 27:2 28:5,6 30:2 33 32:3 34:20,21			calls 6:4 13:7	
12:9 associated 29:9 37:10 attorney 2:11,16 5:13 audit 12:11 19:20 25:11 42:13 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 28:21 32:18 41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 associated 29:9 37:10 believe 8:14 13:14 43:24 believes 42:9 benvegnu 3:8 5:16 15:24 16:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 17:4,7 20:4,14 beyond 43:10 bill 12:4 19:12 25:5 34:6 borne 37:14 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 3ease 41:16 case 41:16 38:9 clark 2:5 3:4,7 3:11,14,18 4:2 4:25 5:23 6:1, 6:19 7:10,16,13 8:21 9:1,10 12:23,24 13:5 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:3 25:20,21 26:2,3,16 27:2 28:5,6 30:2 32 32:3 34:20,21 36:16 40:9 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 12:16,18 13:2 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:3 25:20,21 26:2,3,16 27:2 28:5,6 30:2 32 32:3 34:20,21 32:3 34:20,21	•	41:20 42:8		
12:9 19:18 30:1 34:12 42:12 case 41:16 38:9 37:10 20:10 23:22 21:10 23:23 21:10 23:24 21:10 23:24 21:10 23:24 21:20 24:25 21:20 24:25 21:20 24:25 21:21 23:24		basis 14:19	caption 45:8	
associated 29:9 37:10 34:12 42:12 cause 7:5 8:15 believe 8:14 11:3 13:23 3:11,14,18 4:2 5:13 believes 42:9 42:9 4:25 5:23 6:1, audit 12:11 19:20 25:11 42:13 5:16 15:24 16:1 6:10,11,25 17:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 13:13 14:23 8:21 9:1,10 12:23,24 13:5 august 14:9 22:8 12:16,18 13:2 12:16,18 13:2 13:13 14:23 15:8,17 17:20 28:21 32:18 41:22 bill 12:4 19:12 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 15:8,17 17:20 20:10,11,19,2 24:22 availability break 26:4 23:3 25:20,21 available 9:2 brooke 1:25 45:5 38:15			_	
37:10 attorney 2:11,16 believe 8:14 11:3 13:23 21:10 23:22 3:11,14,18 4:2 5:13 audit 12:11 believes 42:9 27:2 30:24 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 40:9 36:16 9:24,25 36:16 9:24,25 36:16 9:24,25 36:16 9:24,25 36:16 10:11,25 17:1 36:16 10:11,25 17:1 36:16 10:12,35 12:15 36:17 10:12,35 12:15 36:17 10:12,35 12:15 36:17 10:12,35 12:15 36:17 10:12,35 12:15 36:17 10:12,35 12:15				
attorney 2:11,16 5:13 13:14 43:24 believes 42:9 benvegnu 3:8 5:16 15:24 16:1 36:16 40:9 42:13 5:16 15:24 16:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 17:4,7 20:4,14 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 13:13 14:23 13:14 43:24 13:14 43:24 22:10 24:23 16:10,11,25 17:1 28:21 32:18 17:4,7 20:4,14 41:22 13:14 43:24 22:10 24:23 23:15,16 9:24,25 23:10 23:22 13:13 14:23 13:14 43:24 13:14 43:24 23:10 24:23 13:14 43:24 23:10 24:23 13:14 43:24 23:10 24:23 13:14 43:24 23:10 24:23 13:14 43:24 23:10 24:23 13:14 43:24 23:10 24:23 13:13 14:23 23:10 24:23 13:13 14:23 23:10 24:23 13:13 14:23 23:10 24:23 13:13 14:23 23:16,18 13:2 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 23:3 25:20,21 26:2,3,16 27:2 <t< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></t<>				
believes 42:9 benvegnu 3:8 19:20 25:11 42:13 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 28:21 32:18 41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 available 9:2 believes 42:9 benvegnu 3:8 5:16 15:24 16:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 17:4,7 20:4,14 beyond 43:10 bill 12:4 19:12 25:5 34:6 borne 37:14 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 believes 42:9 benvegnu 3:8 36:16 40:9 cazier 3:5,12,15 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 12:16,18 13:2 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 34:15 35:3,6,11 cer 1:25 45:23 28:5,6 30:2 32 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22				3:11,14,18 4:25
audit 12:11 19:20 25:11 5:16 15:24 16:1 42:13 16:10,11,25 17:1 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 17:4,7 20:4,14 28:21 32:18 17:4,7 20:4,14 41:22 12:16,18 13:2 23:9,12,17 25:14 20:10,11,19,2 25:5 34:6 30:15,18,23 32:7 36:16 40:9 22:3,24 13:5 10:2,8,15 12:15 12:16,18 13:2 23:9,12,17 25:14 20:10,11,19,2 21:2,16,24 22 23:3 25:20,21 24:22 23:3 25:20,21 availability 29:16 20:10,11,19,2 available 29:16 20:10,11,19,2 available 29:16 20:2,3,16 27:2 available 29:16 20:2,3,16 27:2 available 29:2 20:2,3,16 27:2 20:2,3,16 27:2 20:2,3,16 27:2 20:3,34:20,21 20:2,3,16 27:2 20:3,34:20,21 20:3,36:7 22				4:25 5:23 6:1,4
19:20 25:11 42:13 august 14:9 22:8 22:10 24:23 28:21 32:18 41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 available 9:2 5:16 15:24 16:1 16:10,11,25 17:1 17:4,7 20:4,14 beyond 43:10 bill 12:4 19:12 25:5 34:6 borne 37:14 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 5:15,16 9:24,25 10:2,8,15 12:15 12:16,18 13:2 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 34:15 35:3,6,11 ccr 1:25 45:23 28:5,6 30:2 32 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22				6:19 7:10,16,17
42:13 16:10,11,25 17:1 5:15,16 9:24,25 13:13 14:23 22:10 24:23 beyond 43:10 10:2,8,15 12:15 15:8,17 17:20 28:21 32:18 bill 12:4 19:12 23:9,12,17 25:14 20:10,11,19,2 24:22 30:15,18,23 32:7 21:2,16,24 22 availability break 26:4 cents 18:19 available 9:2 38:15				· ·
august 14:9 22:8 17:4,7 20:4,14 10:2,8,15 12:15 13:13 14:23 22:10 24:23 beyond 43:10 12:16,18 13:2 20:10,11,19,2 41:22 25:5 34:6 30:15,18,23 32:7 21:2,16,24 22 authorized 9:15 24:22 34:15 35:3,6,11 26:2,3,16 27:2 availability 29:16 brooke 1:25 45:5 38:15 28:5,6 30:2 32 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22	42:13		, ,	12:23,24 13:5,6
22:10 24:23 beyond 43:10 12:16,18 13:2 20:10,11,19,2 28:21 32:18 23:9,12,17 25:14 20:10,11,19,2 20:10,11,19,2 24:22 30:15,18,23 32:7 34:15 35:3,6,11 26:2,3,16 27:2 29:16 brooke 1:25 45:5 28:5,6 30:2 32 38:15 35:19 36:7 22		· · ·		13:13 14:23
28:21 32:18 41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 available 9:2 bill 12:4 19:12 25:5 34:6 borne 37:14 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 23:9,12,17 25:14 30:15,18,23 32:7 34:15 35:3,6,11 ccr 1:25 45:23 cents 18:19 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22				15:8,17 17:20
41:22 authorized 9:15 24:22 availability 29:16 available 9:2 25:5 34:6 borne 37:14 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 30:15,18,23 32:7 34:15 35:3,6,11 ccr 1:25 45:23 cents 18:19 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22	28:21 32:18	•	·	20:10,11,19,20
authorized 9:15 24:22 borne 37:14 availability box 2:7 break 26:2,3,16 27:2 cents 18:19 32:3 32:3 32:3 26:2,3,16 27:2 28:5,6 30:2 32:3 32:3 34:15 32:3 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22:2	41:22		, ,	21:2,16,24 22:19
24:22 availability 29:16 available 9:2 box 2:7 break 26:4 brooke 1:25 45:5 cer 1:25 45:23 cents 18:19 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22	authorized 9:15			23:3 25:20,21
availability break 26:4 cents 18:19 available 9:2 brooke 1:25 45:5 38:15 28:5,6 30:2 32 32:3 34:20,21 35:19 36:7 22	24:22		· ' '	26:2,3,16 27:20
29:16 available 9:2 brooke 1:25 45:5 38:15 32:3 34:20,21	availability			28:5,6 30:2 32:2
available 0.7 35.10 36.7 77				32:3 34:20,21
	available 9:2	45:23	certificate 45:1	35:19 36:7,22
12:18 15:9 20:5 brought 5:1 certified 45:5 37:5,6 38:3 41	12:18 15:9 20:5			37:5,6 38:3 41:1
22:19 25:14 building 1:20 certify 45:6 41:2 42:21,22	22:19 25:14			41:2 42:21,22
30:2 34:16 38:3 class 29:1	30:2 34:16 38:3	building 1.20		class 29:1
42:16	42:16			

[classes - daily]

20.11	21.7.16.27.22.2	22 21 24 20	
classes 29:11	21:7,16,25 22:2	23:21 24:20	court 45:5
clear 5:25	22:5,8,15 23:3	consistent 9:15	cover 18:12
close 18:16	26:3,23,25 27:20	consists 33:1	coverage 28:12
cng 28:25	28:7 29:2,14,18	consolidated 4:6	covers 11:8
collect 11:21	33:20,24 35:19	31:19	credit 8:1 11:19
14:11 18:12	36:12,14,22 37:7	constitutes 45:11	11:24,25 14:10
24:21 37:10	37:8,14,24 43:11	consultant 16:18	18:9 29:1
collected 24:24	company's 22:4	consumer 2:14	credited 8:2
25:1 28:22 29:3	28:25 37:11	5:7	41:25
29:3 32:19	41:12	contained 9:19	cross 3:18 9:2
41:25	compared 33:8	contents 7:7	12:19 15:9,11,12
collecting 18:22	completed 42:13	14:1 21:13 24:1	20:5 22:20 30:3
18:24,25	completely 34:2	24:14 27:17	34:16 38:4,12
collection 11:21	completes 19:19	31:14 36:19	csr 1:25 45:23
18:10 32:22	completion	continue 19:25	current 7:25
column 27:7,11	33:12	29:2 33:25	11:25 14:8 18:7
38:23	components	continues 20:2	19:7
come 34:25	28:14	37:22	customer 7:23
comments 9:16	computer 45:10	contract 33:1,7	8:2 11:25 12:2
commission 1:1	concept 35:2	contribution 8:6	14:16 19:11
12:7 18:4 19:10	concern 33:17	correct 9:13	22:13 24:22
19:18,24 22:7	43:1	11:8,9 35:3	25:3 29:21 34:4
24:21 25:8	concluded 44:6	corrected 27:21	customers 11:19
28:11 30:3	concludes 8:13	correction 24:5	11:23 12:6
34:11	12:12 14:21	24:13 27:6,13	14:13 19:23
commission's	20:3 22:18	31:7,13	25:7 34:10
4:23	25:12 34:14	corrections 27:4	37:15 41:11,21
commodity 27:8	38:2 42:14	27:16 31:5	41:23,25 42:2,3
28:15,21 29:1,25	conduct 29:18	40:13	42:5 43:4
32:13,17,18,23	conducted 18:19	cost 29:6 33:1,5	d
community 8:7	confidential 11:5	33:6	d 3:1 4:1 40:1
company 5:2 6:4	23:23 31:1	costs 27:8 28:12	daigle 3:19 5:16
6:25 7:2,10,18	40:11,20,22	28:16,17,19 29:3	39:12,15,16,19
7:20,25 8:5,11	conjunction	29:9 32:24 33:4	40:1 41:6 42:15
8:21 9:10 11:22	10:23 30:23	33:10 37:10,13	43:8,10,14
13:6,21 14:5,6	40:8	counsel 4:25	daily 1:13 4:20
14:11,13,18,23	conservation 1:8	county 45:3	42:4,7
15:17 18:14,17	4:14 22:3,5		, ,

[dash - employment]

dash 16:11	determining	division's 15:23	dominion's
date 4:5 12:9	34:1	17:9 30:12,14,25	19:15 34:8
25:10 31:10	deu 8:16 27:7	39:4,12 40:9	dominionener
34:13 44:2	deu's 43:4	docket 1:3,5,7,9	2:8
dated 11:4 17:9	developed 29:6	1:12 3:3,6,10,13	driving 32:23
17:17 29:13	development 8:8	3:17 4:8,10,13	due 28:19
31:1	differ 37:20	4:16,19 7:3,20	e
day 45:15	direct 3:4,5,7,9	9:11,22 10:24	
days 29:17 33:23	3:11,12,14,16,18	11:7,11,15,20	e 2:1,1,10 3:1 4:1
debit 28:23 29:4	3:20 6:18 10:11	12:8 13:4,4,20	4:1 5:12 10:16
debt 32:20	13:12 16:4 21:1	14:5,6 15:18,22	10:16 16:11,11
decrease 14:14	23:15 26:15	17:10,17 20:16	16:12 40:1
18:6,19 19:1,8	30:21 31:8 36:6	20:18,18 21:8	earlier 42:25
19:13,17	39:22	22:1,2 23:4,7,19	east 1:21 2:11,16 10:22 16:20
decreases 19:7	direction 24:11	23:24 24:2,15,22	40:7
decreasing 28:25	directly 29:10	25:9,25 26:2,25	echoed 43:5
deferred 1:6	33:10	27:14,15 28:9	effect 8:12 12:1
4:12 14:9 18:5	discussed 23:17	30:12,15 31:2,6	14:19 22:16
19:16	33:20	31:15 32:11	25:2 30:1 34:3
definitive 35:9	discussing 13:21	34:12 35:17,17	effective 12:9
dekatherm 19:8	discussions 43:7	36:16 37:8	18:7 19:1 25:10
19:9 28:23 29:1	distribution	39:11 40:10,21	31:10 34:13
32:21 33:6,7	37:12 41:12	41:14,18 43:1,22	37:25 44:2
41:20	43:4	dockets 4:7 5:8	efficiency 1:6
dekatherms 12:3	divided 37:15	5:17 11:8 23:19	4:12 14:7,8 18:5
14:16 19:11	division 2:9 5:11	31:20,22 42:25	18:6,8 19:6,7,16
22:13 25:4	5:14,14 9:7,23	document 9:16	either 9:9 13:1
29:21 34:5	10:18,24 12:7,10	documents 7:8	15:15 20:13
37:11,14,16	15:14 16:15	13:23 27:5	23:2 25:23
delaney 2:3 4:22	17:15 18:19	36:19	embarrassing
delay 33:14	19:15,19,23,25	dollars 38:15	39:7
delayed 33:12	20:15 23:6,8,18	dominion 1:3,5,7	employed 10:17
department 8:7	25:7,11,24 28:2	1:10,12 2:4,6	16:13,14 40:2
16:14	29:12,14 30:24	4:9,11,14,17,20	employment
designated 4:23	31:14,18 33:16	5:1 11:20 18:3	10:23 30:24
designed 24:21	33:20 34:8	18:23 24:21,23	40:8
determine 43:11	35:14 40:3,9,19	28:10 32:12,20	
	42:8,11 43:2,21	34:12	

[enabling - great]

enabling 1:8	27:1,18,22 36:15	five 4:6	g
4:15 22:3,5	36:23	floor 1:22 2:11	g 4:1 16:11,12
23:21 24:20	expense 14:12	2:16	40:1
ends 10:25	expenses 18:12	fluctuate 18:14	gas 1:11 4:18
energy 1:3,4,5,5	expressed 33:16	follows 6:16 10:9	19:14 28:12,17
1:7,10,12 2:4,6	43:2	13:10 16:2	28:19 29:6,7
4:9,10,11,12,14	extensively 5:8	20:24 23:13	32:13,15,24 33:1
4:17,20 5:1 8:1	\mathbf{f}	26:13 30:19	33:6,8,10,11
9:17 10:25	f 27:7,11	36:4 39:20	41:11,12,21 42:7
11:18 12:8 14:7	facility 29:8,10	footnote 27:9,14	43:2
14:8 18:3,5,6,8	29:19 33:12	force 32:23	general 41:16
19:6,6,16 28:10	34:24	forecast 33:18	general's 2:11
enrolled 11:19	facility's 33:15	forecasted 28:19	2:16 5:13
ensure 20:1	fifth 4:19	29:7 32:24	generated 28:24
entirely 42:5	file 22:5	foregoing 45:7	give 24:5,11 26:4
esq 2:5,10,15	filed 7:2 9:16	45:11	global 29:7
establish 32:20	11:4 13:21 18:3	form 11:5 23:24	go 5:4,24 20:17
established	21:7 23:18,22	31:2 40:11,22	27:6 29:25
41:10	26:25 30:25	forth 45:8	30:11,11 39:4,11
estimated 8:3	40:10	four 29:17 33:23	goals 19:5
estimates 11:23	filing 17:8 22:7	fourth 4:16	going 5:5,22
examination 3:4	24:7,25 28:18	fs 29:10	8:11 14:19
3:5,7,9,11,12,14	32:25 33:8,9	fueling 33:21	22:16 26:3
3:16,18,18,20	34:3 41:15 43:5	full 6:20 26:17	43:10,12
6:18 9:2 10:11	fill 29:15 34:2	36:8 42:12	good 4:3 6:6,8
12:19 13:12	filled 35:1	45:12	9:25 10:2,13
15:9,11 16:4	filling 33:2,14,17	fully 33:17	16:6,7,25 17:1
20:5 21:1 22:20	34:23	funding 7:24	26:6,7 34:1
23:15 26:15	final 12:9 19:20	funds 9:18,19	35:20,22 39:14
30:3,21 34:16	25:9 31:7 35:17	18:12	39:16,24
36:6 38:4,12	finally 4:19	further 9:10	grand 32:4
39:22 42:16	financial 18:8	13:10 15:17	granted 7:15
excuse 39:7	19:5	20:15,24 23:3	8:25 15:6 21:23
exhibit 27:7 29:5	finds 34:9	24:11 25:24	28:4 37:4 41:3
38:23	first 4:8 5:15,24	35:14 43:21	great 9:8 17:5
exhibits 7:4,11	6:2 13:5 28:15		23:5 26:10
8:15,16,22 13:22	3.2 13.3 20.13		35:12 39:2
14:24 21:9,10,17			43:19
			TJ,17

[gs - methodology]

gs 12:2 25:3	impact 42:2 43:3	42:12	13:19 16:20
29:11,21 34:4	includes 28:20	interrupt 16:21	26:21 36:11
41:25	32:15	ipson 3:14 5:3	40:7
guys 34:25	income 1:4 4:9	26:5,6,8,9,12,17	largest 33:9
h	7:21 9:18 10:25	26:19,25 28:6	leads 29:4
	11:19	30:2,4	level 7:24 29:17
h 16:10	increase 7:22	ipson's 34:24	limit 33:14 42:4
handling 5:17	12:3 19:14	35:4	line 24:12 27:7
hearing 1:16 4:6	22:12 25:4	issue 43:7 44:2	27:11 31:11
4:24 9:2 12:20	28:13,14,15,16	i	38:23
15:9 20:6 22:20	28:18 29:22,22	. 2.15 20 22	little 35:8
25:15 34:17	32:12,14,15,16	j 2:15 38:23	lng 29:8,10,15
38:4 42:17,24	32:24 33:5,6,9	jackson 3:17 5:3	33:2,12,14,17,22
44:6	34:5,9	35:19,21,22,25	33:23 34:2,23
heating 8:4	independent	36:3,8,10,14	looking 42:25
33:16,18 heber 1:20	19:13	37:6 38:3,14,22 39:3 43:18	low 1:3 4:9 7:21
	independently		9:18 10:25
help 19:5 hereof 45:8	12:1 25:2	jenniffer 2:5 4:25	11:19
high 33:11,19	indicated 31:10	jenniffer.clark	m
higher 28:19	indicating 24:6	2:8	m 1:20
32:24 37:18	individual 20:1	jesse 3:17 5:3	maintain 7:24
hit 43:23	initial 42:8	35:19 36:3,10	7:25 11:25
hold 6:24 26:22	insofar 11:11	jessica 3:14 5:2	manage 37:14
36:12	23:24 24:2,15	26:5,12,19	manager 7:1
housing 8:7	31:2,6,15	john 2:3 4:22	managing 37:10
i	instructions 21:5	jordan 3:3,7,10	market 33:2.7
1	intended 18:14	5:2 6:4,15,22	33:11,25 34:1
identified 8:15	18:15 37:23	13:9,18 20:23	markit 29:8
ihs 29:7	interest 8:10	judgment 34:1	measures 20:1
imbalance 1:13	12:5 14:12,17	june 33:8	meet 19:5 29:14
4:21 37:9,13,14	18:13,16,22 19:1	k	meets 22:7
37:16,17,19,22	19:21 20:2		memorandum
41:9 42:1,6 imbalanced	22:15 23:19	know 21:5 43:6 44:1	11:4 24:7
37:11	25:6 29:24		mentioned 29:12
imbalances	37:24 42:10	1	methodology
43:15	interim 14:19	l 10:16,16 40:1	41:14
45.13	19:18 30:1	lake 1:23 2:7,12	
	34:12 37:25	2:17 6:22 10:22	

[middle - okay]

middle 18:21	40:20	notes 45:10	officer 2:2 4:3,23
million 7:24	moves 7:10	november 8:12	5:4,10,18,20 6:2
11:22 18:9 24:8	21:16 27:20	12:10 14:20	6:6,9,12 7:13
24:24 25:1	36:22	18:7 19:2 22:17	8:23 9:4,6,8,12
28:13 32:14,16	mt 1:18 44:6	25:10 30:1	9:21,25 10:3,6
32:19	n	34:13 37:25	12:20,21,23,25
minimize 18:13	n 2:1 3:1 4:1	44:3 45:15	13:3 15:1,4,6,11
19:1 42:5	16:10,11,11,12	number 8:15	15:13,15,19
minimizing	40:1	17:17 27:7,9,10	16:21,24 17:2,5
14:12	name 4:22 6:20	27:11,14,15 28:9	17:19,22 20:6,7
misspoke 8:14	10:14,15,16	30:12 35:17	20:10,12,17
misunderstand	12:14 13:16	38:15 43:24	21:19,21,23
35:2	16:8 26:17,19	0	22:21,24 23:1,5
moment 13:21	36:8,10 39:25	o 4:1	23:10 25:16,17
monday 1:17	45:14	o'clock 4:5	25:20,22 26:1,7
monitor 19:25	national 32:13	o0o 1:2 4:2	26:10 27:23
33:25	natural 1:11	oath 13:15 21:4	28:1,3 30:4,7,9
months 8:9	4:18 19:14	23:9	31:22,24 32:2,4
41:22	32:24 33:10	objection 8:23	34:18,20,22 35:4
moore 2:15 5:6,6	41:12	17:20,21 21:20	35:8,12,16,20,23
9:5,12,14,21	necessary 14:12	21:22 32:3	36:1,25 37:2,4
12:21,22 15:2,3	need 33:24 44:2	36:25 37:1,3	38:5,8,20,24
15:12 17:21	needs 43:25	objections 7:13	39:2,10,14,17
20:8,9 21:20	negative 18:9	15:2,3,5 17:19	40:23 41:1,3
22:22,23 25:17	nelson 2:5	21:19 27:24,25	42:17,18,21,23
25:19 27:25	net 18:16 19:1	31:24 32:1,2	43:9,13,16,19,23
30:5,6 31:25	37:14	40:24,25 41:2	officer's 9:2
32:1 34:18,19	new 18:6,11,24	objective 18:11	15:10 22:20
36:25 37:1 38:5	19:4 29:19 34:2	october 1:17 4:4	38:4
38:7 40:24,25	38:22	11:4 17:9,17	oh 5:24 16:23
42:18,20	ngv 28:25	19:2 29:13 31:1	28:13
motion 7:14,15	nomination	32:25	okay 5:10,20,23
8:24,25 15:6	37:21 43:3	office 2:11,14,16	6:12 7:15 8:25
21:23 28:3 32:4	nominations	5:5,6,7,8,13 9:4	9:12 10:6 13:3
37:4 41:3	42:3,7	9:5 27:25 34:17	15:6 16:24
move 8:21 13:3	non 28:17 32:15	40:25	20:12,17 21:23
14:23 26:1	41:11		26:1 28:3 30:9
31:19 35:17			30:11 31:24

[okay - program]

32:4 35:4,16	participate 5:8	39:13,24 41:8	17:2,5,19,22
37:4 38:24 39:2	17:8	point 38:17	20:7,10,12,17
39:8 41:1,3 43:9	participated	portion 24:4	21:19,21,23
43:16,19,23 44:1	10:24	28:21 32:16,17	22:21,24 23:1,5
once 13:6,16	parties 25:15	32:18	23:10 25:17,20
20:20 21:3 23:8	pass 1:9 4:16	position 6:24	25:22 26:1,7,10
30:15	28:9 32:11	18:8 26:22	27:23 28:1,3
operational	41:15	36:12	30:4,7,9 31:22
29:18	patricia 2:10	possible 33:23	31:24 32:2,4
opportunities	5:12	38:14,16	34:18,20,22 35:4
33:15,24	paying 18:22	potential 29:15	35:8,12,16,20,23
oral 45:12	percent 14:15	preliminarily	36:1,25 37:2,4
order 5:5,24	19:13 22:12	5:21	38:5,8,20,24
14:7 44:1	25:5 29:23	preparation	39:2,10,14,17
osas 9:15	33:21 34:7	17:8 42:24	40:23 41:1,3
outlined 34:11	37:16,18,21 42:4	prepare 7:4 11:3	42:18,21,23 43:9
outside 42:3	perfect 6:1	13:23 21:9	43:13,16,19,23
overall 20:1	period 19:2	23:22 27:2	previous 24:6,24
28:12	28:19 29:9	30:24 36:16	37:18
p	pertains 11:11	prepared 7:5	previously 23:17
	pertains 11:11 23:24 24:2 31:2	prepared 7:5 8:16 11:3 13:24	previously 23:17 price 32:23
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15		price 32:23 33:11,25
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6	8:16 11:3 13:24	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14	<pre>price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14</pre>
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings
 p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 part 11:12 17:12	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13 11:17 12:13	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18 5:20 6:2,6,9,12	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12 proceeds 27:14
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 part 11:12 17:12 31:16	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13 11:17 12:13 13:15 14:4 16:8	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18 5:20 6:2,6,9,12 7:13 8:23 9:4,6	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12 proceeds 27:14 28:24
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 part 11:12 17:12 31:16 partial 33:2	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13 11:17 12:13 13:15 14:4 16:8 16:19 17:5 18:2	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18 5:20 6:2,6,9,12 7:13 8:23 9:4,6 9:8,12,21,25	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12 proceeds 27:14 28:24 processes 43:3
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 part 11:12 17:12 31:16	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13 11:17 12:13 13:15 14:4 16:8 16:19 17:5 18:2 21:25 24:5,19	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18 5:20 6:2,6,9,12 7:13 8:23 9:4,6 9:8,12,21,25 10:3,6 12:21,23	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12 proceeds 27:14 28:24 processes 43:3 professional
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 part 11:12 17:12 31:16 partial 33:2 partially 29:15 33:21	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13 11:17 12:13 13:15 14:4 16:8 16:19 17:5 18:2 21:25 24:5,19 26:17 28:6 31:8	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18 5:20 6:2,6,9,12 7:13 8:23 9:4,6 9:8,12,21,25 10:3,6 12:21,23 12:25 13:3 15:1	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12 proceeds 27:14 28:24 processes 43:3 professional 45:6
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 part 11:12 17:12 31:16 partial 33:2 partially 29:15	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13 11:17 12:13 13:15 14:4 16:8 16:19 17:5 18:2 21:25 24:5,19 26:17 28:6 31:8 31:23 32:10	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18 5:20 6:2,6,9,12 7:13 8:23 9:4,6 9:8,12,21,25 10:3,6 12:21,23 12:25 13:3 15:1 15:4,6,11,13,15	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12 proceeds 27:14 28:24 processes 43:3 professional 45:6 program 7:23
p 2:1,1 4:1 16:12 p.m. 1:18 4:5 44:6 p.o. 2:7 page 3:2 24:10 24:12 27:7 29:5 31:9 43:5 paid 14:15 18:13 22:12 paragraph 31:11 part 11:12 17:12 31:16 partial 33:2 partially 29:15 33:21	23:24 24:2 31:2 31:6,15 phone 39:6 place 45:8 placed 29:8 platts 29:7 pleasantries 21:5 please 5:23 6:3 6:20,21 7:17 9:24 10:13 11:17 12:13 13:15 14:4 16:8 16:19 17:5 18:2 21:25 24:5,19 26:17 28:6 31:8	8:16 11:3 13:24 21:11 23:18 27:2 30:25 36:17 present 11:14 17:25 24:17 32:8 41:6 presented 19:25 presently 23:19 presiding 2:2 4:3 4:23 5:4,10,18 5:20 6:2,6,9,12 7:13 8:23 9:4,6 9:8,12,21,25 10:3,6 12:21,23 12:25 13:3 15:1	price 32:23 33:11,25 prices 29:7 33:19 prior 27:14 problem 17:23 proceed 11:17 17:6 18:2 24:19 32:10 41:8 proceedings 45:7,9,12 proceeds 27:14 28:24 processes 43:3 professional 45:6

[program - requests]

19:6 20:1	purchases 33:2	42:11	reflect 38:21
program's 9:18	34:2	ratepayers 18:10	reflecting 35:5
9:19	purposes 38:10	rates 1:10 4:18	reflects 37:13
	put 31:10	8:9,11 11:1 12:6	
projected 19:4	pui 31.10	·	registered 45:6
	q	14:17,18,19	regulation 7:1
pronounce 12:14	qualified 11:23	19:14,22 22:14	regulatory 26:24
proposal 9:17	qualifying 8:1	22:16,16 25:7	36:13
32:14,14	question 34:22	29:23,25 32:13	related 33:10
proposed 8:9	35:13 42:23	32:16,17 37:25	relates 24:15
12:4 14:16	43:20	42:10	relief 7:18 14:5
18:23,24,25 19:5	questions 9:3,5,7	reached 35:9	21:25 28:7 37:7
19:6,21 22:14	9:9 12:19,19,22	read 4:7 27:15	remind 13:15
25:5 28:18	12:24,25 15:10	reasonable 8:10	21:3
29:25 34:9,13	20:5,6,8,9,11,13	12:6 14:17	reported 1:25
37:13 38:22	22:20,22,23,25	19:22 22:14	reporter 45:5,6
41:18 42:11	23:1 25:15,18,19	25:7 29:23	reporter's 45:1
proposes 8:5	25:20,21,22 30:3	34:10 37:23	representing 5:7
proposing 7:25	30:6,7,8,10	42:10	5:13
32:20	34:16,16,19,21	reasons 9:19	represents 12:5
provided 18:17	38:4,6,7,8 39:3	recommendati	19:22 25:6
19:20 38:14	42:16,17,19,20	19:20	28:12 33:9
provides 11:18	42:21,22	recommended	41:19
prudence 33:17	quick 42:23	19:24	request 11:7,10
33:25	_	recommends	11:24 17:9,16,16
pschmid 2:13	r	9:16 12:7 19:17	19:15 23:18,23
pse 9:17	r 2:1 4:1 10:16	25:8 34:10	24:2,14 28:20
public 1:1,16 2:9	10:16 16:12,12	42:11	29:13,24 30:25
5:14 8:10 10:18	40:1	record 4:7 6:21	31:14,20 40:9,14
14:17 16:15	rate 1:4 4:10	10:14 13:17	40:16,21
19:21 22:15	7:22 11:20 12:8	16:9 26:18 36:9	requested 12:8
28:10 29:24	12:9 14:7,11	38:20 39:25	24:25 25:8 42:9
40:3 42:10	18:6,7,11,17,18	45:12	requesting 29:2
public's 12:5	18:18,20,24,25	recover 32:21	requests 7:21
20:2 25:6 37:24	19:5,7,8,17,21	redacted 11:5	8:11 11:20,24
purchase 33:8	24:20 25:8,9	23:23 31:2	14:18 22:2,15
purchased 29:6	34:9,11 37:17	40:11,21,22	24:23 32:12
33:11	38:17,22 41:13	reduction 19:12	37:8,24
	41:16,23,24 42:2		- · · · · , — ·

[requirement - stephenson]

requirement	ryan 3:19 5:16	season 8:4 29:16	sit 43:11
22:7	39:12,19 40:1	33:16,18,24	skip 21:4
requires 22:4	,	second 4:10	snp 21.4 sng 29:3,25
residential 12:2	S	16:22 28:16	sing 29.3,23 soon 44:2
19:11 25:3 34:4	s 2:1 4:1 10:16	31:11 33:9	sorry 5:24 16:22
	10:16 16:10,12	41:17	16:23 22:9
respect 11:15	s&p 29:7		
respectfully 28:10	salt 1:23 2:7,12	section 22:4	26:20 28:13
	2:17 6:22 10:22	see 19:12 25:4	sort 34:25
response 11:7,10	13:19 16:20	29:21 34:5	south 1:21 2:6
17:9,12,16 23:18	26:21 36:11	38:16,25	2:11,16 6:22
23:23 24:2,14	40:7	seeking 18:4	10:22 13:18
29:13 31:1,5,14	says 27:14	seeks 7:18 14:5,6	16:20 26:20
31:20 40:10,14	scenario 18:20	21:25 28:7 37:7	36:11 40:7
40:16,21	18:23	september 18:3	specialist 26:24
result 7:22 14:14	scenarios 18:18	serve 37:23	36:13
18:21 22:12	18:21	served 20:2	specifically
resulted 33:13	scheduled 4:6	service 1:1,11	38:21
resulting 18:10	schedules 41:24	4:18 28:11 29:8	spell 10:14 16:8
37:17 42:9	schmid 2:10 3:5	32:13 33:1,6	39:25
revenue 14:12	3:9,12,16,18,20	37:15,20,23	spoke 35:6
24:22	5:12,12,19 9:6,7	41:24	springer 3:8
review 19:19	9:22,23 10:12	services 2:14 5:7	5:16 15:24 16:1
42:8,13 43:11	12:18 15:4,5,13	8:7 41:11	16:10,12,25 17:1
reviewed 19:23	15:14,21,23 16:5	set 39:9 45:8	17:4,7 20:4,14
34:8	16:23 17:7,15,24	shauna 3:8 5:16	start 4:24 28:13
right 39:4	20:4,15 21:21,22	15:24 16:1,10	33:13
rin 28:24	22:24,25 23:6,8	sheet 27:13	state 2:6 6:20,22
ring 39:6	,	sheets 19:23	9:15 10:13
rings 39:9	23:16 25:14,24	shorthand 45:9	13:15,19 16:8
rmoore 2:18	28:1,2 30:7,8,14	shown 29:5	26:17,20 36:8,11
robert 2:15 5:6	30:22 31:18,23	shows 18:9	39:24 45:2,5
room 1:22	32:6,7 34:15	sic 37:17	statement 24:6
rpr 1:25 45:23	35:14 37:2,3	signature 45:23	station 28:25
rus 5:15	38:8,9,13,25	silent 39:8	stephenson 3:3,7
russel 9:24	39:1,7,11,23	similar 43:1	3:10 5:2 6:5,7,8
russell 3:5,12,15	40:19 41:4,5	simms 1:25 45:5	6:11,13,15,20,22
10:8,15 23:12	42:15 43:21	45:23	7:2,17 8:14 9:1
30:18			13:7,9,14,18,20
			, ,

[stephenson - typical]

14:4,22 15:8	system 37:12	15:16,19 17:5,22	today 5:15 7:8
20:21,23 21:4,24	41:13 43:4	20:3,4,7,9,11,13	8:19 11:12,14
22:19,21 26:4	t	20:14,20 21:24	14:2 17:3,13,25
storage 29:17	taken 1:17 45:7	22:21,23,25 23:5	21:14 24:3,17
33:3,3,14,18,22	45:9	23:10 24:13	27:18 31:16
34:2	talk 5:21	25:13,17,19,23	32:8 36:20
street 2:6 26:21	tank 29:15 33:3	25:25 26:3,10	40:17 41:6
36:11	33:14,18,22 34:2	27:23 28:3,5	today's 4:4
subject 12:10	tariff 1:8 4:15	30:4,10,14 32:1	tolerance 37:16
25:10	19:23 22:3,4,5	32:6 34:15,18,19	42:4
submitted 36:14	23:21 24:20	35:13,15 36:1	total 12:4 25:4
subscribed	technical 16:17	37:5 38:2,5,7,18	27:9,11,12 29:22
45:14	16:17	38:19,24 39:1,2	34:5
summarize 7:18	tell 6:9 10:3	39:3,17 40:23	transcribed
14:4 21:25 28:7	12:13 17:2 26:8	41:4,9 42:14,15	45:10
37:6	35:23 39:15	42:18,20 43:20	transcript 45:11
summary 8:13	test 28:19 29:9	43:22 44:4	transcription
11:14 12:12	32:25	thanks 12:24	45:11
14:21 17:24	testifies 6:16	25:21 42:22	transcripts
20:3 22:18	10:9 13:10 16:2	thereof 45:13	42:25
24:17 25:12	20:24 23:13	think 13:3 21:5	transfer 9:17
32:8 34:14 38:2	26:13 30:19	43:4	transportation
41:5 42:14	36:4 39:20	third 4:13 18:20	1:13 4:21 33:4
supplier 28:16	testimony 7:8	thorough 19:19	37:9,15,18,20,22
32:15 41:11	8:18 11:12 14:2	thought 34:24	41:9,10,21,24
supports 19:15	17:13 21:13	39:8	42:1,2,4,6 43:3
surcharge 28:23	24:3 27:18	three 5:1,15,17	transported
sure 9:6	31:16 34:25	11:8 23:19	37:11
surplus 9:17	35:5 36:20	29:16 31:22	true 45:12
swear 6:9 10:3	40:17	33:22	truth 6:10 10:4
16:22 17:2 26:8	testing 29:18	threshold 37:17	17:3 26:8 35:24
35:23 39:15	thank 5:4,10,12	tic 42:5	39:15
sworn 6:16 9:24	5:18,19 6:1,12	tie 27:9	two 18:17 31:11
10:9 13:10	6:13 7:16 9:1,20	time 4:5 39:10	typical 7:23 12:2
20:24 23:13	9:21 10:6 12:13	44:5 45:8	14:15 19:11
26:13 30:16,19	12:22,23 13:1,2	timing 34:23	22:13 25:3
36:4 39:13,20	14:22 15:1,8,12	title 10:19 16:16	29:20 34:4
		16:17 40:4	
	L		

[typo - zero]

typo 24:4 31:10 weathering 9:18 u 10:16 16:10,11 weatherization understanding 43:17 wells 1:20 understood 34:24 wepro 33:1 upcoming 8:3 wells 1:20 upcoming 8:3 wetherization upcoming 8:3 wells 1:20 upcoming 8:3 withdrawal 29:16 33:23 witness 5:9,24 6:2 9:14 10:5 13:5 15:21,23 16:22 20:19 23:6 30:12,15 39:4,12 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 26:21 28:10,11 x x x x x x 36:11 45:2,3 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12 12:13 25:4		weathering 9:18
u 10:16 16:10,11 understanding 43:17 understood 34:24 upcoming 8:3 updating 28:20 use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 16:14,14,20 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 8:8 wells 1:20 wexpro 33:1 winter 29:16 withdrawal 29:16 33:23 witness 5:9,24 6:2 9:14 10:5 13:5 15:21,23 16:22 20:19 23:6 30:12,15 39:4,12 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 x x 3:1 yeah 38:17 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		O I
understanding wells 1:20 understood 34:24 wexpro 33:1 upcoming 8:3 updating 28:20 use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 23:6 30:12,15 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 26:21 28:10,11 x 3:1 29:21 34:10 x 3:1 36:11 45:2,3 y 40:3 utilities 2:9 5:14 y 40:1 10:18 16:15 40:3 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		
43:17 wexpro 33:1 understood 34:24 winter 29:16 upcoming 8:3 withdrawal 29:16 33:23 updating 28:20 witness 5:9,24 use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 23:6 30:12,15 4:11,14,17,18,20 39:4,12 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 43:13 16:14,14,20 y:13,22 understood withdrawal 29:16 33:23 witness 5:9,24 6:2 9:14 10:5 39:4,12 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 x x 10:18 16:15 y 40:3 y 40:3 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		wells 1:20
understood winter 29:16 34:24 upcoming 8:3 updating 28:20 use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 23:6 30:12,15 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 43:13 16:14,14,20 y 43:13 19:22 25:7 x 26:21 28:10,11 x 29:21 34:10 x 36:11 45:2,3 y utilites 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 y 40:3 y 40:1 utility 10:20 12:3 16:17 40:5 12:3		
withdrawal upcoming 8:3 updating 28:20 use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 23:6 4:11,14,17,18,20 39:4,12 5:13 6:23 12:2,6 13:19 16:14,14,20 43:13 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 10:18 16:15 40:3 y utility 10:20 16:17 40:5		-
upcoming 8:3 updating 28:20 use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 39:4,12 4:11,14,17,18,20 39:4,12 5:13 6:23 16:22 20:19 23:6 30:12,15 39:4,12 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 26:21 28:10,11 x 29:21 34:10 x 36:11 45:2,3 y 40:3 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		
upcoming 8:3 updating 28:20 use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 39:4,12 4:11,14,17,18,20 39:4,12 5:13 6:23 12:2,6 13:19 16:14,14,20 43:13 updating 28:20 13:5 15:21,23 16:22 20:19 23:6 30:12,15 39:4,12 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 x x x 26:21 28:10,11 x 29:21 34:10 x 36:11 45:2,3 y 40:3 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		29:16 33:23
use 33:15,25 uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 16:14,14,20 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 6:2 9:14 10:5 13:5 15:21,23 16:22 20:19 23:6 30:12,15 39:4,12 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 x x 3:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		
uses 19:11 utah 1:1,3,5,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 39:4,12 5:13 6:23 8:6 9:13,22 12:2,6 13:19 43:13 16:14,14,20 43:13 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 y 40:3 y utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		·
utah 1:13,35,8,10 1:11,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 39:4,12 5:13 6:23 8:6 9:13,22 12:2,6 13:19 43:13 16:22 20:19 23:6 30:12,15 39:4,12 witnesses 5:13 6:23 8:6 9:13,22 16:14,14,20 43:13 19:22 25:7 x 26:21 28:10,11 x 29:21 34:10 x 36:11 45:2,3 y utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 y 40:3 y utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 18:15 19:12	·	
1:1,12,23 2:4,6 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 16:14,14,20 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5		,
39:4,12 2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 16:14,14,20 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 39:4,12 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 x x 3:1 yeah 38:17 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		
2:7,11,12,16,17 4:11,14,17,18,20 5:13 6:23 8:6 12:2,6 13:19 16:14,14,20 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 witnesses 5:2,15 9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7 x x 3:1 yeah 38:17 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		· ·
9:13,22 wonderful 15:19 16:14,14,20 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5		,
wonderful 15:19 43:13 workforce 8:7		·
16:14,14,20 19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 43:13 workforce 8:7 x x 3:1 yeah 38:17 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		·
19:22 25:7 26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 workforce 8:7 x x 3:1 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12	, and the second	43:13
26:21 28:10,11 29:21 34:10 36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 x 3:1 y y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12	, ,	workforce 8:7
29:21 34:10		X
36:11 45:2,3 utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12	· I	v 2.1
utilities 2:9 5:14 10:18 16:15 y 40:1 40:3 yeah 38:17 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		
10:18 16:15 40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 y 40:1 yeah 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		-
40:3 utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 yean 38:17 year 7:24 8:2 12:3 14:15,16 18:15 19:12		•
utility 10:20 16:17 40:5 18:15 19:12		· •
16:17 40:5 18:15 19:12		•
18:15 19:12		,
<u>v</u> 22:13 25:4		
v 16:11 29:21 32:25		
victor 16:11 33:10 34:5		33:10 34:5
volumes 37:20 z	volumes 37:20	Z
37:21 41:21 z 10:16	1	z 10:16
w zero 18:15,16	37:21 41:21	10 15 16
wake 39:10		zero 18:15,16
want 43:6	W	zero 18:15,16
we've 43:23	w wake 39:10	zero 18:15,16
	wake 39:10 want 43:6	zero 18:15,16

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure Part V. Depositions and Discovery Rule 30

(E) Submission to Witness; Changes; Signing.

Within 28 days after being notified by the officer that the transcript or recording is available, a witness may sign a statement of changes to the form or substance of the transcript or recording and the reasons for the changes. The officer shall append any changes timely made by the witness.

DISCLAIMER: THE FOREGOING CIVIL PROCEDURE RULES

ARE PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.

THE ABOVE RULES ARE CURRENT AS OF APRIL 1,

2019. PLEASE REFER TO THE APPLICABLE STATE RULES

OF CIVIL PROCEDURE FOR UP-TO-DATE INFORMATION.

VERITEXT LEGAL SOLUTIONS COMPANY CERTIFICATE AND DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Veritext Legal Solutions represents that the foregoing transcript is a true, correct and complete transcript of the colloquies, questions and answers as submitted by the court reporter. Veritext Legal Solutions further represents that the attached exhibits, if any, are true, correct and complete documents as submitted by the court reporter and/or attorneys in relation to this deposition and that the documents were processed in accordance with our litigation support and production standards.

Veritext Legal Solutions is committed to maintaining the confidentiality of client and witness information, in accordance with the regulations promulgated under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), as amended with respect to protected health information and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as amended, with respect to Personally Identifiable Information (PII). Physical transcripts and exhibits are managed under strict facility and personnel access controls. Electronic files of documents are stored in encrypted form and are transmitted in an encrypted fashion to authenticated parties who are permitted to access the material. Our data is hosted in a Tier 4 SSAE 16 certified facility.

Veritext Legal Solutions complies with all federal and State regulations with respect to the provision of court reporting services, and maintains its neutrality and independence regardless of relationship or the financial outcome of any litigation. Veritext requires adherence to the foregoing professional and ethical standards from all of its subcontractors in their independent contractor agreements.

Inquiries about Veritext Legal Solutions' confidentiality and security policies and practices should be directed to Veritext's Client Services Associates indicated on the cover of this document or at www.veritext.com.